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The franchise that we offer is for Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls, a fast casual restaurant featuring authentic
Maine lobster rolls, soups and salads, and other menu items. We offer individual unit Mason’s Famous
Lobster Rolls restaurant franchises and area development franchises for the development of multiple
restaurants within a designated territory.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls restaurant under a
franchise agreement is $241,450 to $629,050. This includes $38,500 that must be paid to the franchisor or
its affiliates.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls restaurant under a
multi-unit development agreement is $256,450 to $764,050. This includes $38,500 that must be paid to the
franchisor or its affiliates, along with a $15,000 development area fee for each additional restaurant
established under the multi-unit development agreement. The minimum amount of restaurants you can open
under a multi-unit development agreement is two and the maximum is 10.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information
in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must
receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or
make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note,
however, that no government agency has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another form that is more convenient for you. To
discuss the availability of disclosures in different forms, contact Daniel Beck, Mason’s Lobster Franchising
LLC, 77 Franklin Street, Annapolis, Maryland 21401, and 252-202-5683.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Do not rely on the disclosure document
alone to understand your contract. Read your entire contract carefully. Show your contract and this
disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you
make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a
Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600
Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at
www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources
of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.
Issuance Date: May 21, 2025
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try to
obtain this information from others, like current and
former franchisees. You can find their names and
contact information in Item 20 or Exhibits G and H.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes
the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit D includes financial statements.
Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the
number of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls
business in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the
franchise agreement describe whether the franchisor
and other franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Mason’s
Famous Lobster Rolls
franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibits G and H list current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their
experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you should
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this
disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.

il
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What You Need to Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell,
how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to
operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that
the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To
find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibit A.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See
the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.

il
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement and multi-unit
development agreement require you to resolve disputes with the franchisor by
mediation, arbitration, and/or litigation only in Delaware. Out-of-state mediation,
arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for
disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor
in Delaware than in your own state.

2. Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse liable
for all your financial obligations under the franchise agreement even though your
spouse has no ownership interest in the franchise. This guarantee will place both
you and your spouse’s marital and personal assets at risk if your franchise fails.

3. Financial Condition. The franchisor’s financial condition, as reflected in its
financial statements (see Item 21), calls into question the franchisor’s financial
ability to provide services and support to you.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.

v
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NOTICE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS
ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

The Michigan Franchise Law states in Sec. 445.1527, Sec.27 that each of the following provisions is void
and unenforceable if contained in any documents relating to a franchise:

a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.
p g J

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which
deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee,
after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except
for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful
provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof
and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the
franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which
have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not
reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This
subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than five years and (ii) the franchisee is
prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same
business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial
symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive
at least six months advance notice of franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to
other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a
renewal provision.

(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not
preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration
at a location outside this state.

(g) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except
for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to

purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current reasonable
qualifications or standards.

(i1) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or sub-franchisor.

(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful
obligations.
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(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or
to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified
with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of
first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third
party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants
the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such
assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to
cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(1) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer
its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for
providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than
$100,000.00, the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and
other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate,
improvements, equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled.
At the option of the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT
BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Department of Attorney General
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION
Attention: Antitrust & Franchise
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor
525 West Ottawa Street
Lansing, Michigan 48909
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117

Vi
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ITEM 1
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

Mason’s Lobster Franchising LLC, the franchisor of the Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls franchise is
referred to in this franchise disclosure document (the “Disclosure Document”) as “we”, “us” or “our” as
the context requires. A franchisee is referred to in this Disclosure Document as “you” and “your” as the
context requires. If you are a corporation, partnership or other legal entity (a “Corporate Entity”), our
Franchise Agreement will also apply to your individual owners, shareholders, members, officers, directors

and other principals.

The Franchisor

We are a Delaware limited liability company established on December 14, 2015. Our principal place of
business is 77 Franklin Street, Annapolis, Maryland 21401. We conduct business under our corporate name
Mason’s Lobster Franchising LLC and under the Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls trade name. Our business
is operating the Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls restaurant franchise system and granting franchises to third
parties like you to develop and operate a restaurant. We began offering franchises as of April 2016. Other
than as discussed above, we are not in any other business, we have not conducted business in any other line
of business, we do not conduct or operate a franchised business of the type to be operated by a franchisee,
and we have not offered or sold franchises in any other line of business. We do not have any predecessors
and we do not have any parent company. Our registered agents for service of process are disclosed in
Exhibit B of this Disclosure Document.

The Franchised Business

We license a system (the “System”) for the development and operation of a Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls
restaurant (each, a “Franchised Business” or “Restaurant”) that serves a menu of Maine style lobster rolls,
New England style soups, side dishes and desserts and beverages that may include alcohol and other menu
items for on-premises dining, carryout, catering, and delivery (the “Approved Services and Products”). The
System includes Approved Services and Products that we currently designate and that we may modify, add
to or discontinue from time to time, and our specifications, methods and procedures for the preparation,
service, marketing and sale of Approved Services and Products by the Franchised Business. The System
also features and requires, as designated by us, your exclusive use of certain food ingredients including raw,
partially prepared and prepared seasonings, sauces, mixes, beverages, and food products used to prepare
Approved Services and Products, supplies and equipment designated by us (collectively, the “System
Supplies”). The System is presently identified by the Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls trademark, the
Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls logo and other trademarks, service-marks, logotypes, and commercial
symbols as we may designate, modify and adopt from time to time for use in the System and as same may
or may not be registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office (collectively referred to as the
“Licensed Marks”). You must develop and operate your Restaurant in conformity with the requirements of
our System, including the specifications, procedures, criteria and requirements that we designate in our
confidential operations manual and other proprietary manuals that we may designate and, as we may
supplement and modify from time to time (collectively, the “Manuals”).

Franchise Agreement

You may enter into a Franchise Agreement in the form attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit E
to develop and operate one Restaurant from a single Restaurant Location within a designated territory. If
you sign a Franchise Agreement, you will be required to develop and operate the Franchised Business in
conformity with the requirements of our System, at a Restaurant Location that we approve. A Restaurant
will ordinarily be located in high traffic retail commercial locations in downtown urban locations or other
predominantly high foot traffic and tourist locations or food halls. If you do not have an approved site for
your Restaurant Location you must select a site in accordance with the Franchise Agreement and obtain
our written approval of the Restaurant Location. Your rights in the System will be limited to the

1
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establishment and operation of a single Restaurant serving only our Approved Services and Products from
your approved Restaurant Location and using only our System Supplies. Your Restaurant must conform to
the requirements of our System.

Multi-Unit Development Agreement

If we approve your request, in addition to signing a Franchise Agreement in the form attached as Exhibit
E, you may enter into a Multi-Unit Development Agreement attached to this Disclosure Document as
Exhibit F, to develop and operate multiple Restaurants. The total number of Restaurants that you will be
required to develop and operate under a Multi-Unit Development Agreement will vary from two
Restaurants to 10 Restaurants, as negotiated at the time of signing the Multi-Unit Development Agreement.
Each Restaurant must be developed by you within a designated geographic area (the “Development Area”)
and each Restaurant must be developed and operated under the terms of our then current individual unit
Franchise Agreement which may differ from the Franchise Agreement included with this Disclosure
Document. Your Multi-Unit Development Agreement will include a development schedule (the
“Development Schedule”) containing a deadline by which you must develop and open each Restaurant.
Your Development Schedule may vary depending on your Development Area and the number of
Restaurants that you are required to develop.

Unless otherwise specified, the information contained in this Disclosure Document applies to single unit
development under a Franchise Agreement and multi-unit development under a Multi-Unit Development
Agreement. If you are not contracting for the right to develop multiple Restaurants, you will not be signing
a Multi-Unit Development Agreement. Even if you sign a Multi-Unit Development Agreement, you will
also be signing individual Restaurant Franchise Agreements with the first Restaurant Franchise Agreement
being the Franchise Agreement attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit E and signed simultaneous
with the signing of the Multi-Unit Development Agreement.

Our Affiliates

DMC Foods, LLC

Our affiliate DMC Foods, LLC is a Maryland limited liability company established on March 24, 2014.
This affiliate maintains a principal business address at 77 Franklin Street, Annapolis, Maryland 21401. This
affiliate is the owner of the Licensed Marks. This affiliate has not in the past and does not now offer
franchises in any lines of business.

DC Lobster DuPont, LLC

Our affiliate DC Lobster Dupont, LLC is a Maryland limited liability company established on November
1, 2019. This affiliate maintains a principal business address at 1303 19" Street, NW, Washington, D.C.
20036. This affiliate owns and operates one fast casual restaurant that is similar to the type being franchised.
This affiliate’s restaurant is located in Washington, D.C. and has been in operation since June 5, 2020. This
affiliate has not in the past and does not now offer franchises in any lines of business.

DC Lobster Co, LLC

Our affiliate DC Lobster Co, LLC is a Delaware limited liability company established on November 15,
2018. This affiliate maintains a principal business address at 77 Franklin Street, Annapolis, Maryland
21401. This affiliate owns one fast casual restaurant that is similar to the type being franchised. This
affiliate’s restaurant is located in Washington, D.C. and has been in operation since September 2021. This
affiliate has not in the past and does not now offer franchises in any lines of business.

Mason’s Long Branch, LLC
Our affiliate Mason’s Long Branch, LLC is a Delaware limited liability company established on March 20,
2023. This affiliate maintains a principal business address at 78 Ocean Avenue N., Long Branch, NJ 07740.

2
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This affiliate owns one fast casual restaurant that is similar to the type being franchised. This affiliate’s
restaurant is located in Washington, D.C. and has been in operation since September 2021. This affiliate
has not in the past and does not now offer franchises in any lines of business.

Market and Competition

The restaurant industry is extremely competitive. You will be competing with numerous restaurants that
offer a wide range of food and beverage items in a wide variety of service formats. You will be competing
with many local restaurants that are independently owned or part of regional or national franchise chain.
These competing restaurants will include restaurants that serve lobster products, soups, seafood related
products, and other food types.

Industry Specific Laws

Many states and local jurisdictions have laws, rules, and regulations that may apply to your Restaurant,
including rules and regulations related to construction, design and maintenance of your Restaurant,
construction requirements, ventilation requirements, zoning and availability of outdoor patios; health and
sanitation requirements for restaurant operation and employee practices concerning the storage, handling
and preparation of food; restrictions on smoking; availability and cleanliness of restrooms; employee health
and safety and emergency preparedness; use, storage and disposal of waste; menu labeling; nutrition
labeling; and equal access for the disabled including, requirements imposed by The Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 and state equivalent laws that may affect your restaurant construction and/or
location requirements, specialized entrance ramps, doors, seating, bathroom facilities and other facility
requirements. You should investigate and evaluate how these regulations and requirements and other
regulations and requirements apply in the geographic where you will be locating your Restaurant. If we
authorize you to serve alcohol, you will be required to comply with federal, state and local laws related to
the purchase, sale, and service of alcohol, and to obtain the necessary state and local licenses and permits
to sell and serve alcohol. State and local laws related to the service and/or sale of alcohol and your ability
to obtain a liquor license for your Restaurant, vary significantly from jurisdiction to jurisdiction and should
be carefully evaluated by with a lawyer before signing a Franchise Agreement. You should consult with
your lawyer concerning these and other local laws, rules and regulations that may affect the operation of
your Restaurant.

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Daniel Beck, President

Daniel Beck has been our President since our inception in December 2015. From May 2014 to the present,
he has been owner of DMC Foods, LLC, which operated a Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls restaurant in
Annapolis, Maryland and was subsequently sold as a franchise location. He was also an owner of DC
Lobster Wharf, LLC, which operated an affiliate location in the Washington, D.C. area until it was sold in
2023. He is also a co-owner of Mason’s Lobster Ventures, LLC, an affiliate of ours which is an eCommerce
business started in July 2020.

Rusty Kurtov, Chief Operating Officer

Rusty Kurtov is our Chief Operating Officer and has been in this role since 2023. Prior to that, from 2020
to 2023, Rusty served as our Vice President of Operations and from 2017 to 2020, Rusty was our Director
of Operations. He is an owner of our affiliate DC Lobster DuPont, LLC and was also an owner of DC
Lobster Wharf, LLC, which operated an affiliate location in the Washington, D.C. area until it was sold in
2023. He is also a co-owner of Mason’s Lobster Ventures, LLC, an affiliate of ours which is an eCommerce
business started in July 2020.
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Dane Cherry, Vice President of Franchise Development

Dane Cherry has been our Vice President of Franchise Development since April 2019. From September
2018 to March 2019, he was our Director of Operations. Since October 2022 and continuing to date, Dane
has been a Member of our affiliate DC Lobster Co, LLC in Washington, D.C. Since March 2012 and
continuing to date, he has been President of DC Falafel I, LLC and DC Falafel Too, LLC, two Amsterdam
Falafel shop franchises located in Washington, D.C.

Yuriy Fedoriv, Principal and Advisor

Yuriy has been an owner of Mason’s Lobster Franchising LLC since our inception in December 2015, and
an owner of our eCommerce affiliate Mason’s Lobster Ventures, LLC since its launch in July 2020. He is
also currently an advisor to us and periodically provides training and new store opening assistance for our
franchisees.

Louis Termini, Director of Franchise Expansion

Beginning in 2021, Louis became an advisor to the Company in matters of franchise expansion and strategy.
He also assists in franchisee real estate procurement, site selection and franchisee selection. Louis was the
President and CEO for Lou Termini Concept, Design & Franchise Consultant, a firm for Concept, design
and franchise consulting for food service, retail and services from May 2019 to April 2021.

Kevin Bastedo, Director of Operations
Kevin Bastedo is our Director of Operations and he has served in this role since March 2022. From January
2017 to March 2022, Kevin was a Franchise Business Coach for Denny Inc. in Spartanburg, South Carolina.

Adam Miner, Southeast Operations Manager

Adam Miner is our Southeast Operations Manager and he has served in this role since November 2024.
From July 2022 to November 2024, Adam was the Operations Manager of FL. Lobster LLC in Belleair
Bluffs, Florida. From May 2010 to July 2022, Adam was the General Manager of P.C. Richard and Son in
Danbury, Connecticut.

ITEM 3
LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 5
INITIAL FEES

Franchise Agreement

When you sign a Franchise Agreement you will pay to us a non-refundable initial franchise fee in the
amount of $35,000 (the “Initial Franchise Fee”). The Initial Franchise Fee is fully earned by us upon
payment. The method we use to calculate the Initial Franchise Fee is uniform for all franchises that we offer
through this Disclosure Document except with regard to the following discounts.

Qualified U.S. Military Veterans Discount
For qualified individuals who were honorably discharged from any branch of the United States Military the
Initial Franchise Fee shall be discounted by $2,500. The discount must be requested at the time of signing

4
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the Franchise Agreement and represents a one-time discount applicable to only the Initial Franchise Fee.
This discount is subject to our approval of franchisee entering into our franchise system and our
qualifications regarding the discount at that time. This discount cannot be combined with other discounts
of the Initial Franchise Fee.

Multi-Unit Development Agreement

If you sign a Multi-Unit Development Agreement, you must pay to us a fixed non-refundable development
area fee (the “Development Area Fee”) in the amount of $15,000 for each additional Restaurant, over and
above your first Restaurant, authorized for development under the Multi-Unit Development Agreement.
The minimum number of Restaurants that you may agree to develop is two and the maximum 10. The
Development Area Fee is in addition to the Initial Franchise Fee of $35,000 that you will pay to us at the
time of signing the Franchise Agreement for your first Restaurant. At the time of signing the Franchise
Agreement for each additional Restaurant authorized by the Multi-Unit Development Agreement, you will
pay to us $15,000 such that the total fee for each additional Restaurant you develop will be $30,000. The
Development Area Fee is fully earned by us upon payment, represents consideration for a designated
development area and, our profit. The method we use to calculate the Development Area Fee is uniform for
all franchises that we offer through this Disclosure Document.

Start-Up Marketing Fee

When you sign a Franchise Agreement, you will pay to us, or affiliate, or our designated supplier a non-
refundable start-up marketing fee in the amount of $3,500 (the “Start-Up Marketing Fee”). The Start-Up
Marketing Fee will be used to provide a baseline of marketing materials and activities to ensure a successful
opening of your Restaurant. This may include digital marketing, in-store marketing materials, public
relations, and/or professional photography and virtual tour of your Restaurant.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 6

OTHER FEES
Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
(Note 1)
Royalty (Notes 2and 3) 5% of Gross Sales Weekly on the Will be debited automatically from
Wednesday of your bank account by ACH or other

each week for the
preceding week

means designated by us.

Brand Development
Fund (Note 4)

Up to 2% of Gross
Sales, currently 1%
of Gross Sales

Weekly on the
Wednesday of
each week for the
preceding week

Will be debited automatically from
your bank account by ACH or other
means designated by us.

Franchisee Directed | Up to 2% of Gross As incurred Must be spent by you monthly on
Local Marketing Sales, currently 1% pre-approved marketing within your
(Note 5) of Gross Sales designated territory.

Business Currently $283 per Monthly as Monthly license for point of sale and

Management System | month invoiced business management systems that

(Note 6) we designate. Payable to us or

supplier as we designate. This is
subject to increase based upon third
party pricing.

Technology ™o ? Up to $500 per Monthly as Will be debited automatically from
month, not currently | invoiced your bank account by ACH or other
assessed means designated by us.

Accounting Services | Up to $600 per store | Monthly as You may use a supplier of accounting

Fee (Optional) per month invoiced services as designated by us.

(12 months)
Non-Standard Menu | $1,000 per As incurred You may only offer menu items,
Fee occurrence products, and combos approved by us

and may not participate in any
unapproved promotions or programs.
We reserve the right to collect a fee
of $1,000 per occurrence for any non-
standard menu items, products,
combos, promotions, or programs
offered at the Franchised Business.

Annual Conference

Our then current

When invoiced

Applies to conference fee for an

Attendance Fee conference fee, not and before annual System conference.
greater than $1,500 conference
ServSafe/TIPS (or $180 per person or As incurred Each of your managers and other
similar) Certification | the then current employees we designate must be
market rate
6
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ServSafe or similarly certified.
Payable to an approved supplier.

Additional Employee
Initial Training

Our then current
daily rate per trainer,
currently $150 per
day, plus expenses
we incur

When invoiced
and prior to
training

Our initial pre-opening training is
provided at no additional cost for you
or your Managing Owner and one
designated manager at no additional
charge. This fee applies to additional
individuals that we authorize to
attend training. You are responsible
for all fees, wages, and expenses
associated with attendance.

Supplemental
On-Site Training

Our then current
daily rate per trainer,

When invoiced
and prior to

If you request or we require on-site
training at your Restaurant, you must

currently $150 per training pay our then current trainer fee plus
day, plus expenses our expenses related to travel and
we incur accommodations.
Interest 18% per annum from | On demand Payable on all overdue amounts, fees,
due date charges, and payments due to us
under the Franchise Agreement.
Interest rate cannot exceed legal rate
allowed by law and may be adjusted
to reflect same.
Non-Compliance: $250 to $750 per On demand If customer review ratings fall below
Customer Reviews month 4 out of 5 or below a 90% approval

(Note 8)

rating you must pay to us a non-
compliance fee of between $250 to
$750 per month for each month of
non-compliance.

Reporting
Non-Compliance

$150 per occurrence

14 days of invoice

Payable for failure to timely submit
Royalty and Activity Reports, and
other reports and financial statements
as required under Franchise
Agreement.

Operations
Non-Compliance

$450 to $1,000 per
occurrence

14 days of invoice

Payable for failure to comply with
operational standards as required and
specified under Franchise Agreement,
plus inspection and re-inspection
costs incurred by us.

Payment
Non-Compliance

$150 per occurrence

14 days of invoice

Payable for failure to timely pay,
when due, a fee or payment due to us
under the Franchise Agreement, plus
interest, costs and legal fees.

Audit

Cost of audit

On demand

For costs incurred by us for each
financial audit, provided the audit
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determines underreporting of 2% or
greater during any designated audit
period. Includes fees incurred by us
including audit, legal, travel and
reasonable accommodations.

Quality Assurance
Audit

Actual costs incurred
by us or fees
designated by us

As invoiced

Payable if we engage a third party to
perform periodic quality assurance
audits, including mystery shopper
programs.

Collections Actual fees, costs, On demand For costs and expenses incurred by us
and expenses in collecting fees due to us, and/or to
enforce the terms of the Franchise
Agreement or a termination of the
Franchise Agreement. Includes costs
and expenses of re-inspections
required by quality assurance audit.
NSF Check Fee or 5% of amount or $50, | On demand Payable if your bank account
Failed Electronic whichever is greater, possesses insufficient funds and/or
Fund Transfer or maximum fee fails to process a payment or transfer
allowed by law related to a fee due from you to us.
Non-Compliance Actual fees, costs, On demand Fees, costs and expenses incurred by
and expenses us as a result of your breach or
noncompliance with the terms of
your Franchise Agreement.
Insurance Premiums | Reimbursement of On demand If you do not maintain the required

our costs, plus 10%
administrative fee

insurance coverages, we have the
right (but not the obligation) to obtain
insurance on your behalf.

Supplier Evaluation

Actual fees, costs,
and expenses

Within 14 days of
invoice

You must pay us the costs incurred
by us to review and evaluate a
potential supplier, product, or service
that you submit to us for approval.

Management Service

5% of Gross Sales,
subject to a minimum
of $2,000 per week
plus expenses

As invoiced

Payable if we elect to manage the
Franchised Business due to a failure
by you to have the Franchised
Business managed by an authorized
Managing Owner or Operating
Manager.

Repair, Maintenance,
Remodeling, and
Redecorating

Will vary under
circumstances

As incurred

Payable to approved suppliers.
You must regularly clean and
maintain your Restaurant and
its equipment. We may
require you to remodel or
redecorate your Restaurant to
meet our then current image

Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls FDD May 21, 2025




for all Mason’s Famous
Lobster Rolls Restaurants.
We will not require you to
remodel or redecorate your
Restaurant more frequently
than every five years.

Transfer Fee 25% of the then On demand Payable if we approve your transfer
current initial request.

franchise fee and, if
applicable, 25% of
the then current
initial franchise fee
per Restaurant
scheduled to be
opened under the
Multi-Unit
Development
Agreement

Renewal One-third of the then | On signing Payable if we approve your renewal
current franchise fee | renewal Franchise | request and upon signing our then
or $10,000, Agreement current Franchise Agreement.
whichever is greater

Explanatory Notes to Item 6

Note 1: Type of Fee — The above table describes fees and payments that you must pay to us, our affiliates,
or that our affiliates may impose or collect on behalf of a third party. All fees are uniformly imposed for all
franchises offered under this Disclosure Document, are recurring, are not refundable, and are payable to us,
unless otherwise specified. If you enter into a Multi-Unit Development Agreement or open multiple
Restaurants then these fees shall apply, respectively, to each and every Restaurant. Payment is subject to
our specification and instruction, including, our election to have all fees automatically drafted from your
business bank account or automatically debited or charged to your business bank account. You will be
required to sign an ACH Authorization Form (Franchise Agreement, Exhibit 7) permitting us to
electronically debit your designated bank account for payment of all fees payable to us and/or our affiliates.
You must deposit the Gross Sales of your Restaurant into the designated bank accounts that are subject to
our ACH authorization. You must install and use, at your expense, the pre-authorized payment, point of
sale, credit card processing, automatic payment, automated banking, electronic debit and/or electronic funds
transfer systems that we designate and require in the operation of your Restaurant. You must pay all service
charges and fees charged to you by your bank so that we may electronically debit your bank account.

Note 2: Royalty Fees — The royalty fee is a continuing weekly fee equal to 5% (the “Royalty Rate”) of your
weekly Gross Sales (the “Royalty Fee”). If any federal, state or local tax other than an income tax is imposed
on the Royalty Fee which we cannot directly, and dollar for dollar, offset against taxes required to be paid
under any applicable federal or state laws, you must compensate us in the manner prescribed by us so that
the net amount or net effective Royalty Fees received by us is not less than 5% of your Gross Sales. If any
federal, state, and/or local government agency, entity, law, rule or regulation prohibits your payment of
royalty fees based on Gross Sales related to the sale of alcoholic beverages, then your Royalty Rate, as
applied to the permissible portion of your Gross Sales that do not include the sale of alcoholic beverages,
shall be increased by us to a rate/amount determined by us so that, the net actual dollar amounts of the
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Royalty Fees received by us shall, not be less than the dollar amounts of the Royalty Fees that would have
been paid to us if there were no such prohibition or restriction.

Note 3: Gross Sales — “Gross Sales” means the total dollar sales from all business and customers of your
Restaurant and includes the total gross amount of revenues and sales from whatever source derived, whether
in form of cash, credit, agreements to pay or other consideration including the actual retail value of any
goods or services traded, borrowed, or received by you in exchange for any form of non-money
consideration (whether or not payment is received at the time of the sale), from or derived by you or any
other person or Corporate Entity from business conducted or which started in, on, from or through your
Restaurant and/or your Restaurant Location, whether such business is conducted in compliance with or in
violation of the terms of the Franchise Agreement. Gross Sales include the total gross amount of revenues
and sales from whatever source derived from and/or derived by you (including any person and/or Corporate
Entity acting on your behalf) from business conducted within and/or outside your designated territory that
is related to your Restaurant and/or a competitive business located and/or operated at your Restaurant
Location, within your designated territory, outside your designated territory, and/or otherwise. Gross Sales
do not include (a) sales taxes that you collect and remit to the proper taxing authority, and (b) authorized
promotional discounts that you provide to customers.

Note 4: Brand Development Fund — The brand development fund fee is a continuing weekly fee equal to
an amount of up to 2% of your weekly Gross Sales (the “Brand Development Fund Fee”). Currently we
charge a Brand Development Fund Fee of 1% of your weekly Gross Sales.

Note 5: Franchisee Directed Local Marketing — On an on-going monthly basis, you must spend not less
than 1% of your monthly Gross Sales on the local marketing of your Restaurant within your designated
territory and in accordance with our standards and specifications. We may increase your local marketing
requirement but not more than 2% of your monthly Gross Sales on a monthly basis.

Note 6: Business Management System — You must maintain and utilize the point of sale systems that we
designate from time to time, currently Toast, as well as other designated business management systems as
set forth in the Manuals. The business management system fee is the current monthly license fee to access
the point of sale and business management systems that we designate. This fee also includes credit card
processing fees and other integrations such as online ordering, customer rewards, and gift cards.

Note 7: Technology Fee — The continuing monthly technology fee is an administrative fee and is not
associated with any particular service but is used, at our discretion, to defray some of our costs related to
system website and intranet (the “Technology Fee”). Currently we do not charge a monthly Technology
Fee but reserve the right to implement one at any time in the future provided that the monthly Technology
Fee shall not exceed $500 per month.

Note 8: Non-Compliance Fee: Customer Reviews — You must subscribe to and participate in the customer
review tracking and reputation management services and providers that we designate. If your customer
review or customer satisfaction ratings, as measured across the review platforms that we designate, go
below 4 stars out of 5 stars and/or a 90% positive satisfaction rating, then you must pay to us a customer
review non-compliance fee of $250 for each and every month of non-compliance. If a condition of non-
compliance occurs for more than three months, then we may increase this non-compliance fee to a monthly
fee of not more than $750 per month.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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A. Franchise Agreement

ITEM 7

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

. Method of To Whom Payment is
Type of Expenditure Amount E—— When Due Mado
Initial Franchise Fee ™t D $35,000 Lump sum When Franchise Us
Agreement is signed
Construction and Leasehold $110,000 — $354,000 | As arranged As incurred Contractors, suppliers,
Improvements Mot 2) and/or landlord
Lease Deposits, Utility $9,300 — $54,300 As arranged As incurred Landlord, suppliers
Deposits, and Rent — Three
Months Mote )
Furniture, Fixtures and $50,000 — $80,000 As arranged As incurred Suppliers
Equipment Mot 4
Signage Mot $5,000 — $27,500 As arranged | As incurred Suppliers
Business Management Systems | $3,750 — $4,000 As arranged As incurred Suppliers
(Note 6)
Start-Up Marketing N7 $3,500 Asarranged | As incurred Us, suppliers
Initial Inventory and Uniforms $4,400 — $12,000 As arranged As incurred Suppliers
(Note 8)
Insurance Deposits — Three $1,500 — $1,750 As arranged As incurred Insurers
Months ot 9
Travel for Initial Training $0 - $2,500 As arranged As incurred Airlines, hotels,
(Note 10) restaurants
Professional Fees MNote 1D $13,000 — $30,000 As arranged As incurred Attorneys,
accountants,
architects, advisors
Licenses and Permits Mot 12) $1,000 — $4,500 Asarranged | As incurred Government
Additional Funds — Three $5,000 — $20,000 As arranged As incurred Us, employees,
Months Mote 13) suppliers, landlord,
utility suppliers
Total Estimate MNoe 14) $241,450 — $629,050
11
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Explanatory Notes to Item 7 for a Franchise Agreement

Note 1: Initial Franchise Fee — The Initial Franchise Fee for a single franchise under a Franchise Agreement
is $35,000. All fees are non-refundable. We do not finance any portion of your initial fees.

Note 2: Construction and Leasehold Improvements — This estimate is for the cost of construction,
construction management and build-out of Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurant but does not
including furniture, fixtures and equipment. Our estimates are based on the assumption that the typical
square footage of a Restaurant ranges from 800 to 1,500 square feet. These estimates are based on the
assumption that the location that you select for your Restaurant is a site delivered to you at a pre-existing
stage where existing interior improvements consist of installed and functional heating/cooling with
delivery systems, essential lighting, electrical switches and outlets, lavatories, a finished ceiling, walls
prepared for painting and a concrete slab floor. This estimate does not include architectural fees or other
fees charged by licensed professionals other than general contractors and licensed tradesmen and do not
include any special heating cooling or ductwork required by a restaurant. The costs for developing your
Restaurant may be higher or lower than the estimates provided.

Note 3: Lease Deposits, Utility Deposits, and Rent — Three Months — You must operate your Mason’s
Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurant from a Restaurant Location that we approve and complies with state and
local laws. If you do not already own or lease a suitable location you will be required to lease a location
that meets our standards and is approved by us. This estimate is based on the assumption that you will be
leasing your Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurant Location and is for the estimated amount of the
initial lease deposit that you will be required to pay to the landlord at the time of signing your lease and
before opening your Restaurant. The estimate is based on the assumption that your lease deposit will be
equal to three months of rent payments. The typical square footage for a Restaurant ranges from 800 to
1,500 square feet. The amount of your lease deposit is something that you will directly negotiate with the
landlord and will vary significantly based on a number of factors that include location and your own
negotiations. To secure the appropriate utilities required for the operation of your Restaurant, including gas,
electric, water, sewer and internet access, you will be required to pay upfront deposits to each applicable
utility company. This estimate does not include the purchase of real property should you elect to purchase
the real property of your Restaurant Location.

Note 4: Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment — You will be required to purchase certain types of furniture,
fixtures and equipment for your Restaurant. Among other things, you will be required to purchase a walk-
in or reach-in refrigerator, prep refrigerator, prep tables, sandwich make up line, smallwares, panini press,
soup kettles, beverage cooler, Turbochef oven, and computer equipment from us, our approved
manufacturers, and/or suppliers and/or subject to our specifications. The costs for furniture and fixtures
may differ depending on the material quality and on other factors. Significant factors that will influence
and will increase the cost of furniture, fixtures and equipment will depend on the size of your Restaurant.
The costs listed here do not include any transportation or set up costs. It is assumed that some of the
equipment will be leased. If you elect to purchase such equipment, your costs may be higher. Third party
financing may be available for qualified candidates for some of the leasehold improvement costs, however,
with such financing comes associated costs and fees which will cause the cost to exceed what is indicated
in this table.

Note 5: Signage — You are required to purchase, subject to our design and construction specifications and
approval, interior and exterior signs and displays that we designate. This estimate is for the cost to produce
wall signage to be mounted to the outside of the building as well as all interior signage. This estimate
includes other elements of brand identification within the Restaurant such as wall graphics.
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Note 6: Business Management Systems — You will be required to purchase, license and use the point of
sale systems, ordering systems, applications, and other business management systems that we designate.
Information about the point of sale and computer systems are disclosed in Item 11 of this Disclosure
Document.

Note 7: Start-Up Marketing — When you sign a Franchise Agreement, you will pay to us, or affiliate, or our
designated supplier a non-refundable Start-Up Marketing Fee in the amount of $3,500. The Start-Up
Marketing Fee will be used to provide a baseline of marketing materials and activities to ensure a successful
opening of your Restaurant. This may include digital marketing, in-store marketing materials, public
relations, and/or professional photography and virtual tour of your Restaurant. All marketing must be pre-
approved by us and conducted in accordance with our brand standards and specifications.

Note 8: Initial Inventory and Uniforms — Your initial inventory comprised of smallwares, uniforms, and
supplies and your on-going inventory and supplies (including System Supplies) that you are required to
obtain from us, our affiliate or from our designated suppliers are paid for at standard prices and terms and
your ongoing inventory must be purchased from either us or our approved vendors.

Note 9: Insurance Deposits — Three Months — You are required to maintain certain insurance coverage.
Your actual payments for insurance and the timing of those payments will be determined based on your
agreement with your insurance company and agent. This estimate is for the cost of an initial deposit in order
to obtain the minimum required insurance and we estimate this deposit to be equal to the amount of three
months of monthly insurance premium payments. We recommend that you consult with your insurance
agent before signing a Franchise Agreement. If you elect to sell alcohol, you may need additional “Dram
Shop” insurance in addition to the required minimum insurance requirements.

Note 10: Travel for Initial Training — You must complete our pre-opening training program before opening
your Restaurant. We do not charge a fee for our pre-opening initial training. This estimate is for estimated
travel and lodging expenses that you will incur to attend our pre-opening initial training program.

Note 11: Professional Fees — This estimate is for costs associated with the engagement of professionals
such as attorneys, accountants, and architects for advisories consistent with the start-up of a Restaurant.
You will be required to hire an architect that is approved by us to develop plans that meet our standards and
specifications and comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations for the development and operation of
your Restaurant. It is also advisable to consult these professionals to review any lease and other contracts
that you will enter into as part of the development and operation of your Restaurant.

Note 12: Licenses and Permits — You must apply for, obtain and maintain all required permits and licenses
necessary to operate a Restaurant. The licenses will vary depending on local, municipal, county and state
regulations. All licensing fees are paid directly to the governmental authorities when incurred, and are due
prior to opening the Franchised Business. This estimate does not include the cost of specialized licenses
such as, for example, liquor licenses that involve a specialized application process and involve costs that
vary significantly depending on state and location. The cost and licensing requirements for liquor licenses
vary from state to state and jurisdictions within a state. Before signing a Franchise Agreement, you should
carefully review with a lawyer the costs, availability, and requirements for obtaining a liquor license.

Note 13: Additional Funds — This is an estimate of the minimum recommended levels of additional funds
that may be required to cover operating expenses such as employee salaries, inventory, rent, and utilities
only for the initial three month period following the opening of your Restaurant. This estimate does not
include compensation to you or your owners and does not include interest, finance charges, or payments
that may be incurred by you if you financed the development of your Restaurant. In making this estimate,
we have relied on the experiences of our affiliate in developing and operating restaurants that are the same
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as the Franchised Business. This is only an estimate for your initial three months of operations and more
working capital and additional funds may be required depending on the sales and performance of your
Restaurant.

Note 14: About Your Estimated Initial Investment — This is an estimate of the initial start-up expenses for
a Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurant. We have based these estimates on the experiences of our
affiliate in developing a Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls restaurants that are the same as the Franchised
Business. These are only estimates and your costs and, the range of those costs, may vary. These estimates
do not include interest and financing charges that you may incur and they do not include management level
compensation payable to you or your owners. These estimates are for one Restaurant only. If you sign a
Multi-Unit Development Agreement, the estimated amount will be required for each Restaurant that you
develop.

B. Multi-Unit Development Agreement

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

. Method of To Whom
Type of Expenditure Amount B When Due B 18 s
Development Area $15,000 — $135,000 Lump sum | When Franchise Us
Fee (Note 1) Agreement and Multi-

Unit Development
Agreement are signed

Estimated Initial $241,450 — $629,050 Estimated Initial Investment is based on the estimate
Investment to Open contained in Table A, above, of this Item 7, for a
One Restaurant Franchise Agreement. See, Table A.

(Note 2)

Total Estimate $256,450 — $764,050

(Note 3)

Explanatory Notes to Item 7 for a Franchise Agreement and a Multi-Unit Development Agreement

Note 1: Development Area Fee and Franchise Fees — When you sign a Multi-Unit Development Agreement
you must also sign a Franchise Agreement for your first Restaurant. At the time of signing your Multi-Unit
Development Agreement, in addition to paying us the Franchise Fee for your first Restaurant, you will pay
to us a Development Area Fee. The amount of the Development Area Fee is $15,000 for each additional
Restaurant, over and above your first Restaurant, authorized for development within the Development Area.
The minimum number of Restaurants that you may be authorized to develop under a Multi-Unit
Development Agreement is two and the maximum number is 10. In addition to the Development Area Fee
and the Initial Franchise Fee for your first Restaurant, at the time of signing the Franchise Agreement for
each additional Restaurant authorized under your Multi-Unit Development Agreement, you will pay to us
an initial franchise fee in the amount of $15,000 such that the total fee for each additional Restaurant you
develop will be $30,000.

Note 2: Estimated Initial Investment — This is the estimated initial investment for the development of one
Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurant under a Franchise Agreement as reflected in Table A of this
Item 7. It is important to review Table A of this Item 7 and the Explanatory Notes to Table A in detail.

14

Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls FDD May 21, 2025



Note 3: Total Estimate — This is the total estimated investment to enter into a single unit Restaurant
Franchise Agreement and a Multi-Unit Development Agreement. Under the Multi-Unit Development
Agreement, you will be granted the right to, potentially, develop and operate between two to 10 Restaurants.
This estimate is only for the development of one Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurant. Except for
your first Restaurant, this estimate does not include the estimated initial investment that you will incur each
and every time you develop a Restaurant as may be authorized under your Multi-Unit Development
Agreement and pursuant to the terms of each respective Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Franchise
Agreement.

ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

You may only offer and sell the Approved Services and Products. You may only use those products,
supplies, equipment, technology systems, and services that we authorize and designate in writing. To ensure
that our standards and specifications of quality, service and System development are maintained, you must
operate your Restaurant in strict conformity with the Franchise Agreement and the methods, standards,
specifications and sources of supply that we designate and prescribe in the Manuals or as we may otherwise
designate and approve in writing.

Source Restricted Purchases and Leases — Generally

We require that you purchase or lease certain source restricted goods and services for the development and
operation of your Restaurant. Source restricted goods and services are goods and services that must meet
our specifications and/or that must be purchased from an approved or designated supplier that may include
us or our affiliates. We may designate a supplier, including ourselves or our affiliates, as the exclusive
supplier for the System. Our specifications and list of approved and designated suppliers is contained in our
Manuals. We will notify you of any changes to our specifications or list of approved or designated suppliers.
We may notify you of these changes in various ways, including written or electronic correspondence,
amendments and updates to our Manuals, and other forms of communication. We formulate and modify
our standards and specifications for products and services based on our industry experience and our
management decisions as to the overall operation and expansion of the System. If we have previously
approved a supplier, and their standards fall below our designated standards, we will revoke our approval.
We will notify you in writing of us revoking our approval.

Suppliers and Supplier Criteria

We may designate ourselves and our affiliates as exclusive suppliers of source restricted goods and services.
We may designate ourselves or a third party as the sole and exclusive supplier irrespective of the existence
of competing suppliers. If, in the Manuals, we do not designate a supplier for a particular item, you will
purchase all such products, supplies and services from suppliers who meet our specifications and standards.
Currently, we are not and our affiliates are not approved suppliers of the source restricted goods and services
identified below. Currently no officer of ours owns an interest in any of our designated suppliers.

If you want to purchase or lease a source restricted item from a supplier that has not been previously
approved or designated by us in writing, you must send us a written request for approval and submit
additional information, samples, and testing data that we may request. We may charge you a fee equal to
the costs and expenses that we incur in reviewing and evaluating an alternate supplier, product, and/or
service requested by you. We may request that you send us samples from the supplier for testing and
documentation from the supplier for evaluation. We may also require, subject to our discretion, that we be
allowed to inspect the supplier’s facilities. We will notify you of our approval or disapproval within a
reasonable time not exceeding 60 days after we receive your written request and all additional information
and samples that we request. We may, in our sole discretion, withhold our approval. We do not make our
procedures or criteria for approving suppliers available to our System franchisees, except that when
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evaluating the approval of a particular supplier, among other things, we consider: whether the supplier can
demonstrate to our reasonable satisfaction the ability to meet our standards, specifications and production
requirements, the supplier’s quality control, whether or not we are the exclusive supplier of the particular
item, whether or not our affiliate or affiliates are the exclusive supplier of the particular item, and whether
or not the supplier’s approval, in our sole determination, will allow us to advance the overall interests of
the System and our company.

We estimate that your purchase of goods and services from suppliers according to our specifications,
including your purchase of goods or services from our designated exclusive suppliers, to represent
approximately 80% of your total purchases and leases in establishing the Franchised Business and
approximately 60% of the on-going operating expenses of the Franchised Business. We currently require
that you purchase or lease the following source restricted goods and services:

1. Lease — We do not review the terms of the lease for your Restaurant Location but require that your
landlord acknowledge our rights as set forth in the lease agreement rider attached as Exhibit 4 to the
Franchise Agreement (the “Lease Agreement Rider”) and that you collaterally assign the lease to us as
set forth in the collateral assignment of lease attached as Exhibit 5 to the Franchise Agreement (the
“Collateral Assignment of Lease”). We possess the right to disapprove of a proposed lease if the landlord
refuses to sign the Lease Agreement Rider in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit 4 to the Franchise
Agreement. The Lease Agreement Rider grants certain rights to us, including our right to be notified in
the event of a lease default and, potentially, for us to enter the premises of your Restaurant.

2. System Supplies — Your Restaurant must maintain an initial and ongoing inventory of System
Supplies. You must purchase the System Supplies, as designated by us, from us, our affiliates, and/or
our designated suppliers.

3. Furniture and Fixtures — Your Restaurant must be equipped with branded and unbranded furniture
and fixtures that we designate and that meet our standards and specifications. You may purchase
unbranded furniture and fixtures from any supplier of your choosing, provided that the furniture and
fixtures meet our specifications and standards, which may also include specified manufacturers, brands
and models. If the furniture and fixtures that we designate are specified to be branded with the Licensed
Marks, then you may only purchase them from our designated exclusive suppliers.

4. Signage — The signage for your Restaurant must meet our standards and specifications and must be
purchased from our designated suppliers.

5. Point of Sale System and Computer Equipment — Currently you are required to purchase, license and
utilize a Toast point of sale system with at least two configured hardware terminals. Additionally, you
must purchase and maintain a computer system on-site at your Restaurant Location. In general, you will
be required to obtain a computer system that will consist of certain hardware, software, and peripheral
devices such as printers. You will be required to meet our requirements involving back office and point
of sale systems, security systems, printers, back-up systems, and high-speed internet access. Currently
we require that you install certain video surveillance systems through Solink Corp. and we recommend
that you obtain the monitoring service for the video surveillance system.

6. Credit Card Processing — You must use our designated supplier and vendor for credit card processing
which may be integrated with the point of sale system that we designate. Credit card processing fees
will, generally, be based on a percentage of all credit card processed Gross Sales.

7. Online Ordering, Customer Rewards, and Gift Cards — You must use our designated supplier and
vendor for the ability to access and use online, point of sale integrated, web based, and/or app based,
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ordering, customer rewards, and/or gift card systems. As you access and utilize these systems you will
pay usage fees based on a percentage of your processed Gross Sales.

8. Third Party Delivery Services — The operations of your Restaurant must comply with our policies,
procedures, requirements and restrictions respecting the use of third party food delivery services and
third party online ordering services. We may restrict or prohibit your use of and/or participating in third
party delivery services and/or third party online ordering services. To the extent that we grant you the
right to use a third party delivery service and/or online ordering service we may require that you do so
through accounts and/or agreements controlled by us.

9. Branded Items and Marketing Materials — All materials bearing the Licensed Marks (including, but
not limited to, stationary, business cards, brochures, apparel, signs and displays) must meet our standards
and specifications and must be purchased from either of us directly or our designated suppliers. All of
your marketing materials must comply with our standards and specifications and must be approved by
us before you use them. You may market your Restaurant through approved digital media and social
media platforms provided that you do so in accordance with our digital media and social media policies.
You must purchase all branded marketing materials from either us or our designated exclusive supplier.
We may require that you exclusively use, at your cost, our designated supplier for social and digital
media marketing services and exclusively use, at your cost, our social media platforms, vendors and
marketing channels. You must provide access to all creative assets, including raw files, upon our request.

10. Insurance — You must obtain the insurance coverage that we require from time to time as presently
disclosed in the Manuals and as we may modify. All insurance policies required under your Franchise
Agreement and as set forth in the Franchise Agreement must be written by a responsible carrier,
reasonably acceptable to us and all insurance (excluding workers’ compensation) must name us, our
officers, directors, shareholders, partners, agents, representatives and independent contractors as
additional insureds. The insurance policies must include a provision that the insurance carrier must
provide us with no less than 30 days’ prior written notice in the event of a material alteration to, or
cancellation of, any insurance policy. A certificate of insurance must be furnished by you to use at the
earlier of 90 days after the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement or prior to the commencement of
our initial training program. Insurance coverage must be at least as comprehensive as the minimum
requirements set forth below and in the Franchise Agreement (Franchise Agreement, Article 8). You
must consult your carrier representative to determine the level of coverage necessary for the Franchised
Business. Higher exposures may require higher limits.

Insurance Requirements

a) Coverage against direct physical loss or damage to real and personal property, including
improvements and betterments, written on a special form peril basis, including flood and earthquake,
if the relevant property is situated in a flood or earthquake zone, in an amount equal to 100% of the
Franchised Business’ property value and with a deductible not more than $5,000;

b) Comprehensive general liability insurance, written on an occurrence basis, extended to include
contractual liability, products and completed operations, and personal and advertising injury, with a
combined bodily injury and property damage limit of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and
$2,000,000 in the aggregate. There may be no products liability or completed operations exclusion.
There may be no “injury to subcontractor employee,” or its equivalent, exclusion. The commercial
general liability policy must provide coverage to you for the hold harmless and indemnity clauses
contained in your Franchise Agreement;
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¢) Statutory workers’ compensation insurance and employers’ liability insurance as required by the
law of the state in which the Franchised Business is located, including statutory workers’
compensation limits and employers’ liability limits of at least $1,000,000;

d) Business automobile insurance, including liability insurance coverage for hired and non-owned
automobiles, with a combined single bodily injury and property damage limit of at least $1,000,000

per occurrence, if applicable;

e) Business interruption insurance equal to 12 months of your net income and continuing expenses
including Royalty Fees;

f) Commercial umbrella liability insurance with total liability limit of at least $1,000,000;

g) Cyber insurance, including data breach expense, with coverage for first party and third party
claims, in the amount of not less than $1,000,000;

h) Dram Shop/Liquor liability insurance with a limit of at least $1,000,000, if applicable;

i) Employment practices liability insurance with a limit of at least $2,000,000, including actions of a
third party and a minimum limit of $100,000 for wage and hour disputes; and

j) All other insurance that we require in the Manuals or that is required by law or by the lease or
sublease for the Franchised Business.

11. Architect/Drawings — You must utilize only our approved architects to create the required drawings
for the development of your Restaurant. You will be required to pay our approved architect directly.

Purchase Agreements and Cooperatives

We may, in our discretion, negotiate purchase agreements, including price terms, with designated suppliers
for source restricted goods and services on behalf of the System. We may establish preferred vendor
programs with suppliers on behalf of some or all of the Restaurants under the System. We may limit the
number of approved vendors and/or suppliers that you may purchase from and we may designate one vendor
as your sole supplier. Presently, we have supply agreements in effect for source restricted products or
services with Sysco, Coca-Cola, and Imperial Dade Paper. Presently, there are no purchasing or distribution
cooperatives that you must join. You will not receive any material benefits for using our designated or
approved suppliers.

Our Right to Receive Compensation and Our Revenue from Source Restricted Purchases

We and/or our affiliates may receive rebates, payments and other material benefits from suppliers based on
your purchases and we reserve the right to institute and expand rebate programs in the future. During the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2024, Sysco paid us $203,187 for the purchase incentive rebate. During
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024, we also received rebates from Coca-Cola in the amount of
$1,835. The forgoing rebates represent 13% of our total revenue of $1,531,827. During the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2024, we contributed $193,439 derived from rebates into the Brand Development
Fund.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 9

FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help you
find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of this

Disclosure Document.

Table Abbreviations: “FA” — Franchise Agreement; “DA”— Multi-Unit Development Agreement

Disclosure

Obligation Articles in Agreement Document Item
a.  Site selection and acquisition/lease | FA: 2.A., 3.A. and 3.B. 7 and 11
DA:2,5.5and 5.6
b. Pre-opening purchases and leases | FA: 3 and 8 7 and 8
DA: Not applicable
c.  Site development and other pre- FA:3,4,7F.,7.G.,71.,7.J.,8and 9 6,7 and 11
opening requirements DA:2,5.5and 5.6
d. Initial and ongoing training FA:4,71].,14.C. and 14.D. 11
DA: Not applicable
e. Opening FA: 2,3, 4 and 9.B. 11
DA:2,3,4.1,44and 4.5
f.  Fees FA:3,4.A.,5,9,10,12,13, 14,15, 16 and 5,6and 7
18.N.
DA:4,52and 7.13
g. Compliance with standards and FA:3,4,5,7,8,9,11, 12 and 13 8and 11
policies/manual DA:2and5
h. Trademarks and proprietary FA: 6,7 and 11 13 and 14
information DA:2,5and 7.3
i.  Restrictions on products and FA:3,4.C.and 7 8,11 and 16
services offered DA:2and5
j. Warranty and customer service FA:7 16
requirements DA: Not applicable
k.  Territorial development and sales | FA: 2 and 3 12
quotas DA: 4
1. Ongoing product and service FA:3,4.C.,5and 7 8
purchases DA: Not applicable
m. Maintenance, appearance, and FA:3 and 7 7 and 17
remodeling requirements DA: 5
n. Insurance FA: 8 7 and 8
DA: Not applicable
0. Advertising FA:3F.,4B.,71,9and 11 6,8 and 11
DA: Not applicable
p. Indemnification FA: 10 and 11.E. 6 and 13
DA: Not applicable
g. Owner’s participation, FA: 4,6 and 7 11 and 15
management, and staffing DA:2.5and 6.2
r.  Records and reports FA:5,9,12 and 13 6
DA: Not applicable
s.  Inspections and audits FA:5,7K.and 13 6and 11
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. . . Disclosure
Obligation Articles in Agreement Document Item
DA: Not applicable
t.  Transfer FA: 14 17
DA: 6
u.  Renewal FA: 15 17
DA:3
v.  Post-termination obligations FA:6,10,11, 17 and 18 17
DA: Not applicable
w. Non-competition covenants FA: 6,17 and 18 17
DA: Not applicable
x.  Dispute resolution FA: 18.F. and 18.G. 17
DA:7
y. Individual guarantee of franchisee | FA:2.C.,6,7.J.,14.C,, 14D., 14.E. and 17.C. | 9
obligations DA: 23 and 6.2
ITEM 10
FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease, or other obligation.

ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING,
COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Pre-Opening Obligations

1. Grant of Franchise — We will grant you the right to operate a Restaurant at a single Restaurant Location
within a designated territory. (Franchise Agreement, Article 2);

2. Franchise Agreement Designated Territory — Once you secure a Restaurant Location that we approve,
we will define the Designated Territory for your Restaurant and include the geographic boundaries and/or
a description of your Designated Territory within Schedule 1 of the Franchise Agreement. (Franchise
Agreement, Article 2 and Schedule 1);

3. Multi-Unit Development Agreement Development Area — If you have entered into a Multi-Unit
Development Agreement, we will designate your Development Area. The Restaurants to be developed by
you must be located within the Development Area. Once you select a Restaurant Location that we approve
within the Development Area, within the Franchise Agreement for each respective Restaurant we will
define the Designated Territory and include the geographic boundaries and/or a description of your
Designated Territory for each respective Restaurant. (Multi-Unit Development Agreement, Section 2). Our
approval or disapproval of future Restaurant locations that may be developed under a Multi-Unit
Development Agreement will be based on our then current site selection criteria;

4. Manuals — We will provide you with access to our confidential and proprietary Manuals. You must
operate the Franchised Business in accordance with the Manuals and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations. At all times, we reserve the right to supplement, modify and update the Manuals. (Franchise
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Agreement, Article 4.C.). As of the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document, the operations manual
consists of 180 pages and the table of contents to the operations manual is attached as Exhibit C to this
Disclosure Document (Franchise Agreement, Article 4). The major subjects contained in the operations
manual consists of establishing, developing, marketing and operating the Franchised Business;

5. Site Review, Approval and Designated Territory — We will review the proposed site that you select for
your Restaurant and will notify you of our approval or disapproval. Once you select a site that we approve
for the location of your Restaurant, we will designate your Designated Territory. However, if you negotiate
and we agree to designate and grant to you a Designated Territory prior to your selection of a Restaurant,
then you must locate your Restaurant within the Designated Territory and at a site that we approve. You
must obtain our approval of your Restaurant Location. Additional information about site selection is
discussed in more detail below in this Item 11;

6. Approved Suppliers and Distributors — We will provide you with a list of our approved suppliers and
distributors, either as part of the Manuals or otherwise in writing. (Franchise Agreement, Articles 3 and 4);

7. Signs, Equipment, Furniture, and Fixtures — We will provide you with a list of our approved signage,
menu boards (digital and otherwise), equipment, furniture and fixtures, either as part of the Manuals or
otherwise in writing and we will review and approve, in our discretion, your proposed signage, equipment,
furniture and fixtures. We do not provide assistance in delivering or installing signs, equipment, furniture,
or fixtures. (Franchise Agreement, Articles 3 and 4);

8. Website and Digital Media — We will identify your Restaurant on our website. You may not use any
websites, web-based media or digital media unless expressly approved by us in writing. We strictly control
how you may or may not use websites and digital media and you must assign all website media and digital
media accounts to us. (Franchise Agreement, Articles 3.F. and 9); and

9. Initial Training — Not less than 30 days prior to the opening of your Restaurant you or your Managing
Owner must attend and complete our initial training program. We will provide you, and up to one of your
designated managers, with training in accordance with our initial training program. (Franchise Agreement,
Article 4). Our current training program is to be attended by you, or if you are a Corporate Entity, your
Managing Owner and one Operating Manager at our training facility located in Annapolis, Maryland. The
training program takes place over an approximate five day period and is described below in this Item 11 in
more detail.

Site Selection

Although you are responsible for selecting a site for your Restaurant Location you must obtain our approval
of your Restaurant Location. We do not typically own or lease the real property that will serve as your
Restaurant Location and you are responsible for all costs and expenses in locating and evaluating proposed
sites and the demographic data associated with your proposed sites. Before you enter into a lease or other
agreement for your Restaurant Location you must obtain our approval. We will provide you with site
selection guidelines. If your Franchise Agreement specifies and designates a Designated Territory, your
Restaurant Location must be located within your Designated Territory at a site that we approve. If you sign
a Multi-Unit Development Agreement then each Restaurant Location must be located within the
Development Area designated in the Multi-Unit Development Agreement and, as applicable, at sites that
we approve within the Development Area. Your rights in your Restaurant Location must be subordinate to
our rights as set forth in the Lease Agreement Rider attached as Exhibit 4 to the Franchise Agreement and
the Collateral Assignment of Lease attached as Exhibit 5 to the Franchise Agreement.

Although there is no specified time limit for us to review the proposed site for your Restaurant Location,
we will do so within a reasonable time period, not exceeding 30 days of our receipt of your written request

21

Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls FDD May 21, 2025



for our review of a proposed site and your submission to us of the information and documentation that we
may request. In determining whether to approve or disapprove a proposed site for your Restaurant Location,
factors that we take into consideration include: (a) demographic factors, traffic patterns, parking, building
structures, visibility and available sign locations; (b) characteristics of the proposed site; (c) the location of
your proposed site relative to your overall Designated Territory and proximity to other Restaurants, if your
Designated Territory was previously designated; (d) the location of your proposed site relative to your
overall Development Area and proximity to other Restaurants, if you signed a Multi-Unit Development
Agreement and your Development Area was previously designated; and (e) whether or not the landlord for
the Restaurant Location approves of our Lease Agreement Rider in substantially the same form as contained
in Exhibit 4 of the Franchise Agreement.

Within 270 days of signing your Franchise Agreement you must secure a Restaurant Location and lease
that we approve (Franchise Agreement, Article 3.A.). If you do not meet this requirement for any reason,
including our disapproval of a proposed restaurant location and/or your failure to find a suitable restaurant
location that we approve during the 270 day period, we may terminate your Franchise Agreement without
refunding any fees to you if you do not cure this default within 30 days of notice from us. It is your
obligation to consult with government agencies, architects, and legal professionals to evaluate and
determine that your Restaurant Location permits the establishment and operation of the Franchised Business
and that you possess the necessary licenses and authority to operate a restaurant that offers and provides
the Approved Services and Products. (Franchise Agreement, Articles 2, 3, 7 and 16).

Time to Open
Y ou may not open your Restaurant until you have completed our initial training requirements, obtained the

necessary licensing and authorization from state and regulatory agencies within your Designated Territory,
obtained and provided us with written proof of the required insurance, and have timely secured a Restaurant
Location that we approved.

We estimate that the length of time between the signing of your Franchise Agreement and opening your
Restaurant to be approximately nine to 18 months. Factors that may affect this estimated time period
include: (a) evaluating and selecting a suitable site for your Restaurant Location; (b) timeliness of your
submission to us of information and documentation that we may request in determining whether or not to
approve of the site for your proposed Restaurant Location; (c) length of time taken by you to successfully
complete our initial training program; (d) negotiating and obtaining a suitable lease for your Restaurant
Location that is approved by us; (e) obtaining third party lender financing, if necessary; and (f) obtaining
the necessary licenses for the operation of your Restaurant. Other factors that may affect this time period
include availability of equipment, delays associated with equipment installation and the construction and/or
installation of your leasehold improvements and fixtures. You must open your Restaurant within 18 months
from the effective date of your Franchise Agreement, otherwise we may terminate your Franchise
Agreement without refunding any fees to you. (Franchise Agreement, Article 3.C.).

Post-Opening Obligations

1. Supplemental Training — We may require that you and your Operating Manager participate in
supplemental on-site training that we may designate and require in our discretion. We may provide, in our
discretion, supplemental training on-site at your Restaurant Location. You will be required to pay our then
current supplemental training fee, currently $150 per on-site trainer per day, plus travel expenses, meals
and accommodation expenses incurred by us. If such training takes place during our field personnel’s
scheduled visit to your restaurant, then there will be no charge for such training. (Franchise Agreement,
Article 4.A.);
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2. Initial Training for Replacement Operating Manager(s) — Your Operating Manager must complete, to
our satisfaction, our initial training program. We will offer and make available to your replacement
Operating Manager our initial training program which must be complete to our satisfaction. The initial
training program will be provided by us at the facilities that we designate that, presently, is comprised of
our training facility located in Annapolis, Maryland and at the certified training Restaurant or facility that
we designate in Annapolis, Maryland. You will be required to pay our then current supplemental training
fee for your replacement Operating Manager, currently $150 per manager per day for each replacement
manager attending our initial training. If such training takes place during our field personnel’s scheduled
visit to your restaurant, then there will be no charge for such training. You will also be responsible for all
costs incurred by your managers in attending our initial training (Franchise Agreement, Articles 4.A. and
7.1.);

3. Communication of Operating Standards — We may establish, update and provide you with consultations
and communications as to the standards, procedures and System requirements as to the operation of your
Restaurant including, but not limited to, Approved Services and Products, System Supplies, marketing and
promotion standards, and as we may, in our discretion, designate, modify, supplement and amend from
time to time and as set forth in the Manuals which we may, in our discretion, modify from time to time.
(Franchise Agreement, Articles 4.B. and 4.C.);

4. Marketing Standards and Approval — We may establish, update and communicate to you our standards
for the marketing and promotion of the Franchised Business including, but not limited to, the marketing
materials and mediums that you may utilize. We will respond to your request respecting the communication
of our approval or disapproval of marketing materials and mediums that may be requested by you for use
in the marketing and promotion of the Franchised Business. We maintain full discretion as to the marketing
standards and the marketing materials and media that you may use in the marketing and promotion of the
Franchised Business (Franchise Agreement, Article 4.B.);

5. Approved Vendors — We will provide the names and addresses of approved vendors and suppliers for
the Approved Services and Products and the System Supplies. (Franchise Agreement, Articles 4.B. and
4.C);

6. Annual System Conference — We may, in our discretion, coordinate an annual conference to be attended
by franchisees of the System that are in good standing. We may charge an annual conference fee not
exceeding $1,500. You will be responsible for all travel and accommodation expenses associated with your
attendance at the conference. (Franchise Agreement, Articles 4.B. and 5.C.);

7. Administration of Marketing Funds — We may administer and manage System-wide marketing funds
comprised of a Brand Development Fund. (Franchise Agreement, Article 9.A.);

8. Hiring and Training of Employees — We do not provide assistance with the hiring and training of your
employees. You will be directly responsible for the management and supervision of your employees. For
the protection of the System, you must ensure that all employees wear and maintain the proper uniforms
with our approved System branded apparel and uniforms including, but not limited to, the apparel and
uniforms comprising System Supplies. You must monitor and ensure that all System Supplies and
Approved Services and Products are prepared, maintained, and served in accordance with the System
standards and Manuals; and

9. Pricing — You will exclusively determine the prices that you charge for the Approved Services and
Products served and sold by your Restaurant. However, we may suggest pricing levels that we recommend.
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Advertising

1. Generally — All advertising, marketing, marketing materials and all marketing mediums used by you in
the marketing and promotion of your Restaurant must be pre-approved by us in writing and conform to our
standards and specifications. You may only utilize those advertising and marketing materials and mediums
that we designate and approve in writing. In our discretion, we may make available to you approved
marketing templates comprised of pre-approved ads, ad copy and digital media that you may utilize at your
own expense. If you wish to utilize marketing materials and/or marketing mediums that are not currently
approved by us in writing, you may submit a written request requesting permission and we will approve or
disapprove of your request within 15 days of your submission of the written request and sample marketing
materials. We are not required to spend any amount on your behalf on advertising in your designated
territory and we are not required to conduct any advertising on behalf of the franchise System or on your
behalf. (Franchise Agreement, Article 9);

2. Local Marketing — You are not authorized to engage in any marketing unless it is pre-approved by us in
our discretion (Franchise Agreement, Article 9.B.). On an on-going and monthly basis, you must spend not
less than 1% of your monthly Gross Sales on the local marketing of your Restaurant. We may increase your
required local marketing requirement but not more than 2% of your monthly Gross Sales in any monthly
period. We will review your local marketing programs and notify you if we approve same. We will make
available to you and provide you with access, in the form of a source document, to our approved marketing
campaigns, media, and messaging that may be used by you. In those instances where we provide you with
access to our marketing campaigns, we provide you with the source designs, copy, and design
specifications. However, you will incur the direct costs associated with customizing, duplicating and using
such marketing campaigns and in having them printed, distributed and/or placed with media sources.
(Franchise Agreement, Article 9);

3. Digital Media, Published Content, and Website — All digital media, published content, and marketing
must be approved by us. We will designate for your Designated Territory information about your Restaurant
on the www.masonslobster.com webpage or such other websites as we may designate for the System. You
must provide us the original files for all print and digital media assets used to promote sales, the brand, and
your Restaurant. (Franchise Agreement, Article 9);

4. Brand Development Fund — We may control and administer a brand development fund (the “Brand
Development Fund”) (Franchise Agreement, Article 9.A.). As disclosed in Item 6 of this Disclosure
Document, you must contribute a weekly sum not to exceed 2% of weekly Gross Sales to the Brand
Development Fund. We may use the Brand Development Fund for market studies, research, service
development, product development, testing, research studies, technology development, advertising and
public relations studies or services, creative production and printing of advertising and marketing materials,
advertising copy and commercials, tracking costs, agency fees, advertising councils, franchisee advisory
councils, administrative costs, which may include reimbursement for direct administrative and personnel
costs associated with advertising and public relations, and any other costs associated with the development,
marketing and testing of advertising, marketing and public relations materials, and the purchase of media
placement, advertising time and public relations materials in national, regional or other advertising and
public relations media in a manner determined by us, in our discretion, to be in the best interest of the
franchisees and the System. Our company and/or affiliate owned Restaurants may but are not required to
contribute to the Brand Development Fund. The Brand Development Fund will maintain unaudited
financial records detailing its expenditures and will make available to you, no more frequently than one
time in any 12 month period, an unaudited accounting of how monies contributed to the Brand Development
Fund were spent each year. We are not required to segregate the Brand Development Fund from our general
operating funds and we are not a fiduciary or trustee of the Brand Development Fund. The Brand
Development Fund will not be used to directly promote your Restaurant or the marketing area in which
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your Restaurant will be located. (Franchise Agreement, Article 9.A.). We may use the Brand Development
Fund to develop and test various media and technologies for potential use and/or improvement of the
operations of Restaurants and the marketing of Restaurants. These technology developments and/or
improvements may relate, among other things, to our website and to the interaction and potential
enhancement of web offerings that may or may not be implemented on behalf of Restaurants. You may or
may not benefit from these technology developments and improvements. The Brand Development Fund
will be uniformly imposed upon all franchisees. (Franchise Agreement, Article 9.A.).

We may use the Brand Development Fund to compensate ourselves for administrative fees associated with
managing the Brand Development Fund and for our internal employee salaries, expenses and overhead
associated with or reasonably allocated to managing the activities of the Brand Development Fund and
performing services on behalf of the Brand Development Fund including, but not limited to, directing,
developing and managing media of the Brand Development Fund. We will not use the Brand Development
Fund to directly market the sale of Restaurants, but may do so indirectly by requiring and including
information as to the availability of Restaurant franchises for sale and contact information for franchise
inquiries on and within advertising, marketing and brand development materials, including the System
website, developed with the Brand Development Funds.

During the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024, we collected $138,321 towards the Brand Development
Fund and we contributed $193,439 derived from rebates into the Brand Development Fund. Of'the $331,760
in the Brand Development Fund, we have spent 100% on advertising;

5. Local and Regional Advertising Cooperative — As of the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document we
have not established any local or regional advertising cooperatives but reserve the right to do so in the
future; and

6. Advertising Council — We have not established an advertising council but reserve the right to do so in
the future. (Franchise Agreement, Article 9.A.).

Business Management System

You must purchase, license and use the computer, point of sale, business management, customer marketing,
ordering, and other systems that we designate. Currently, the designated point of sale system that you must
license and use is Toast, and as may be otherwise designated by us in the Manuals. You are required to
purchase and operate one configured and licensed point of sale hardware terminal. Additionally, you must
purchase and maintain a computer system on-site at your Restaurant Location. You are responsible for
maintaining updated and current versions of all software systems designated by us. You are responsible for
the maintenance and repair of all computer equipment and computer systems that we designate and require.
Estimated costs for the maintenance, repair and update of the designated computer systems ranges from
$500 to $1,500 per year. There are no contractual obligations imposed on us to maintain, repair, update, or
upgrade your computer systems. You are required to provide us with independent access to all of the
information and data that is transacted, collected, and stored by the Franchised Business on the Business
Management Systems, your computer systems, and otherwise.

Initial Training

If this is your first Restaurant we will provide initial training for you, or if you are a Corporate Entity, your
Managing Owner. You or your Managing Owner and your general manager must successfully attend and
complete the initial training program to our satisfaction no later than 30 days before the opening of your
Restaurant. The initial training program takes place over an approximate five day period. If more than four
individuals attend initial training you may be charged an additional fee per additional persons attending
initial training. Although we provide you and your general manager with initial training at no additional fee
or charge, you will be responsible for paying for all travel expenses and employee wages that you incur in
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your initial training attendance and participation. (Franchise Agreement, Article 4). Currently, we provide
our initial training program no less frequently than quarterly and on an as-needed basis.

TRAINING PROGRAM
The following table summarizes the subjects covered in our initial training program:
Hours of Hours of
Subject Classroom | On-the-Job Location

Training Training
Introduction and Welcome 1 0 Annapolis, Maryland
Day to Day Operations 3 12 Annapolis, Maryland
Quality Control 2 2 Annapolis, Maryland
Safety and Security 1 2 Annapolis, Maryland
Customer Service 2 2 Annapolis, Maryland
Marketing 1 1 Annapolis, Maryland
Scheduling and Staffing 2 2 Annapolis, Maryland
Financial Management 3 2 Annapolis, Maryland
Franchise Responsibilities and 2 Annapolis, Maryland
Procedures
Subtotal Hours 17 | 23 |

Total Hours | 40

Instructional materials that will be used in the initial training process includes our Manuals, live instruction,
and handouts. Initial training will be conducted under the direction and supervision of our officers, Daniel
Beck, Rusty Kurtov, Yuriy Fedoriv, or Dane Cherry. Each of our instructors has between 15 and 30 years
of experience to the subjects they are teaching. The level of experience of our trainers will, at a minimum,
include each trainer’s satisfactory completion of our initial training program. In addition to initial training,
you will also be required to participate in and satisfy all other training programs that we may designate
respecting the Franchised Business. (Franchise Agreement, Articles 4 and 7.J.).

After the opening of your Restaurant, we reserve the right to require that you (or your Managing Owner if
you are a Corporate Entity) attend a system-wide training program (the “System-Wide Training Program”)
that we may establish in our discretion. If we establish a System-Wide Training Program, the program will
be offered from our training facility in Annapolis, Maryland and you will be responsible for all travel and
expenses, lodging, food, automobile rental expenses, and employee wages that you incur in connection with
your attendance. We will not require your attendance at a System-Wide Training Program for more than a
total of five days in any calendar year.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 12
TERRITORY

Your Location

Under the Franchise Agreement, we will grant to you the right to develop and operate one Restaurant at a
specific Restaurant Location. If the location is not known at the time you sign a Franchise Agreement, then
your Restaurant location must be secured by you but subject to our approval.

If we enter into a Multi-Unit Development Agreement with you, we will grant to you the right to develop
a mutually-agreed upon number of Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurants within a specified
Development Area and subject to the agreed upon Development Schedule. The first Restaurant that you
develop under your Multi-Unit Agreement will be governed by the Franchise Agreement. Based on your
Development Schedule obligations, you must sign our then current Franchise Agreement for all other
Restaurants authorized by your Multi-Unit Development Agreement.

Grant of Territory

Under the Franchise Agreement, once you identify a site that we approve for your Restaurant Location we
will designate an area around your site as your designated territory (the “Designated Territory”). The scope
and size of the area comprising your Designated Territory will be determined according to whether the
Restaurant Location is within an urban or suburban area, along with other factors that we determine. If your
Restaurant is located within a non-traditional location or a captive market type facility, such as a shopping
mall, stadium, amusement park, airport, university, or a similar facility with a captive market, your
Designated Territory may be limited to the physical boundaries of the non-traditional location or captive
facility. Depending on the demographics and geography we may designate your Designated Territory where
your Restaurant is located at the center of the Designated Territory or where your Restaurant is located
elsewhere within the Designated Territory. We may identify your Designated Territory by zip code,
boundary streets, highways, county lines, designated market area, and/or other recognizable demarcations.

If we enter into a Multi-Unit Development, under the Multi-Unit Development Agreement, we will grant
to you a Development Area. The size of your Development Area will vary significantly from other
franchisees, will be negotiated at the time of signing your Multi-Unit Development Agreement, will depend
on your agreed upon Development Schedule, and other factors, including our System development plans,
and the nature of the market and demographics in which your Development Area is located.

Relocation

Your right to relocate your Restaurant is not guaranteed and approval of a request by you to relocate your
Restaurant is completely at our discretion. We evaluate relocation requests on a case-by-case basis and
consider factors such as operational history, the location of other Restaurants, our expansion plans, the
designated territory, demographics and other factors that, at the time of a relocation request, are relevant to
us. If you sign a Multi-Unit Development Agreement, you will not be granted the right to relocate your
Development Area.

Establishment of Additional Restaurants

You do not have the right to establish additional Restaurants unless you sign a Multi-Unit Development
Agreement. If we enter into and sign a Multi-Unit Development Agreement with you then you will have
the right to develop a mutually-agreed upon number of additional Restaurants within a specified
Development Area. The size of your Development Area will vary significantly from other franchisees and
your right to develop additional Restaurants under a Multi-Unit Development Agreement will be subject to
your timely compliance with the agreed upon development schedule, your compliance with the terms of
your Multi-Unit Development Agreement, and your compliance with all other agreements with us and our
affiliates, including all Franchise Agreements. Our approval of future Restaurant Locations and their
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respective designated territories will be based on our then current site and territory criteria. Our designation
of a particular Development Area is not an assurance or warranty that there are a sufficient number of
suitable sites for Restaurants in the Development Area for you to meet your Minimum Performance
Schedule.

Options and Rights of First Refusal to Acquire Additional Franchises
You are not granted any options, rights of first refusal, or similar rights to acquire additional franchises.

Territory Rights
You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets

that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. However, during
the term of the Franchise Agreement, provided that you are not in default of your obligations to us or our
affiliates and except as to our Reserved Rights set forth below, we will not establish or open and we will
not grant another franchisee the right to establish or open a Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurant at a
Restaurant Location within your Designated Territory.

We and our affiliates reserve to ourselves the exclusive right on any and all terms and conditions that we
deem advisable and, without any compensation or consideration to you (Franchise Agreement, Article 2.D.
and Multi-Unit Development Agreement, Section 2.3), to engage in the following activities (our “Reserved
Rights”): (a) operate and grant to others the right to develop and operate Restaurants and Franchised
Businesses using the System and Licensed Marks at locations outside your Designated Territory and, if
applicable, Development Area, as we deem appropriate and irrespective of the proximity to your Designated
Territory and, if applicable, Development Area; (b) acquire, develop, merge with or otherwise affiliate with
one or more businesses of any kind, including businesses that offer and sell products and services that are
the same as, or similar to, the Franchised Business, and after such acquisition, merger or affiliation to own
and operate and to franchise, or license others to own and operate and to continue to own and operate such
businesses of any kind, even if such businesses offer and sell products and services that are the same as or
similar to a the Franchised Business but, not using the Licensed Marks, within your Designated Territory
and, if applicable, within your Development Area; (c) be acquired by or merge with or otherwise affiliate
with one or more businesses of any kind, including businesses that offer and sell products and services that
are the same as or similar to the Franchised Business, even if such business or businesses presently or, in
the future, own and operate and franchise or license others to own and operate businesses that offer and sell
products and services that are the same as or similar to the Franchised Business but, not using the Licensed
Marks, within your Designated Territory and, if applicable, your Development Area; (d) use the Licensed
Marks and System to distribute the Approved Services and Products offered and sold by the Franchised
Business or products and services similar to the Approved Services and Products offered and sold by the
Franchised Business in alternative channels of distribution including wholesale, retail, and/or internet
based, supermarkets, grocery stores, wholesale stores, and other outlets, within or outside your Designated
Territory and, if applicable, your Development Area; (e) operate, and grant to others the right to own and
operate, a Restaurants within or at captive market locations including, but not limited to, indoor malls,
airports, transportation stations, military bases, amusement parks, recreational parks or facilities, sports
facilities, convention centers, and travel centers, both within and outside your Designated Territory and, if
applicable, your Development Area; and (f) use the Licensed Marks and System and to license others to
use the Licensed Marks and System, to engage in all other activities not expressly prohibited by the
Franchise Agreement.

Restrictions on Us from Soliciting or Accepting Orders in Your Territory

There are no restrictions on us from soliciting or accepting orders from customers inside your territory. We
reserve the right to use other channels of distribution, such as the internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or
other direct marketing sales, to make sales within your territory using our principal trademarks or using
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trademarks different from the ones you will use under the Franchise Agreement. We do not pay any
compensation to you for soliciting or accepting orders from inside your territory.

Soliciting by You Outside Your Territory

You are required to target and direct the marketing of your Restaurant to customers located within your
territory. You may only offer and sell Approved Services and Products from your Restaurant Location
located within your Designated Territory and, only to (a) retail customers for consumption on the premises
of your Restaurant Location, (b) personal carryout from your Restaurant Location, (c) delivery customers
located within your Designated Territory, and (d) catering to customers physically located within your
Designated Territory.

You are not allowed to solicit or accept orders from consumers outside your territory, and you do not have
the right to use other channels of distribution, such as the internet, catalog sales, telemarketing or other
direct marketing to make sales outside your territory.

Competition by Us Under Different Trademarks

We do not have plans to operate or franchise a business under trademarks different from the Licensed Marks
that sells or will sell goods or services similar to those that will be offered by you through the Franchised
Business.

ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

Under the terms of the Franchise Agreement, you will be granted a license to use the “Mason’s Famous
Lobster Rolls” trademark and those other marks that we designate. Our affiliate DMC Foods, LLC is the
owner of the Licensed Marks and has granted to us a license with an initial 20 year term and with automatic
renewal thereafter to use the Licensed Marks and to license our franchisees to use the Licensed Marks. We
reserve the right to supplement and modify the marks that you may or may not use in connection with the
operations of your Restaurant. You may only use the Licensed Marks as authorized by us in writing and
under the terms of your Franchise Agreement. You may not use the Licensed Marks in the name of any
Corporate Entity that you establish.

Principal Trademarks Registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office

The principal trademarks identified in the schedule below are a part of the Licensed Marks, our System, are
registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office (the “USPTO”) and, unless otherwise
designated by us, will be used by you in the operations of the Franchised Business. As to these marks all
required affidavits have been filed with the USPTO.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Mark USPTO Registration Registration Registration Date
Number Type
Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls | 5,614,252 1A November 17, 2018

Principal Trademarks Not Registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office

The following principal trademarks identified in the schedule below are part of the Licensed Marks, our
System, and will be used by you in the operations of the Franchised Business but are not registered with
the USPTO. As to each of these principal trademarks: We do not have a federal registration for each of
these principal trademarks. Therefore, the trademarks identified below do not have many legal benefits and
rights that are afforded to federally registered trademarks. If our right to use the trademarks (identified
below) in challenged, you may have to change to an alternative trademark, which may increase your
expenses.

Serial Number for Registration

Mark Application Filed with USPTO Application Type Application Date
Application
@ Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

MASONS

As to our principal trademarks there are no currently effective material determinations by the USPTO, the
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, any court, or the trademark administrator of any state. There are no
pending infringement, opposition or cancellation proceedings and no pending litigation involving our
principal marks. We know of no superior rights or infringing uses that could materially affect your use of
our principal marks or other related rights in any state. There are no agreements currently in effect which
limit our right to use or to license others to use the Marks, except for the trademark license agreement
between us and our and our affiliate, DMC Foods, LLC, dated April 1, 2016, and the co-existence agreement
between DMC Foods, LL.C and Cosmo Entertainment, LL.C dated January 22, 2018.

You are required to provide us with written notice of any claims that you may become aware of respecting
the Licensed Marks including your use of the Licensed Marks and/or any claim associated with a third
party’s use of a trademark that is identical or confusingly similar to the Licensed Marks. We maintain the
exclusive discretion to take any and all actions, or to refrain from any action, that we believe to be
appropriate in response to any trademark infringement, challenge or claim. As between us, we possess the
sole right to exclusively control any and all litigation, legal proceedings, administrative proceedings and/or
settlement(s) involving any actual or alleged infringement, challenge or claim relating to the Licensed
Marks. You must sign all documents, instruments and agreements and undertake the actions that we, with
the advice of our legal counsel, determine to be necessary or advisable for the protection and/or maintenance
of our interests in the Licensed Marks in any legal proceeding, administrative proceeding or as may be
otherwise determined by us. As to the foregoing, we will reimburse you for the reasonable out-of-pocket
administrative expenses that you incur and pay in complying with our written instructions.

We will protect your right to use the Licensed Marks and other related rights and to protect you against
claims of infringement and unfair competition related to the Licensed Marks, provided that you use the
Licensed Marks in accordance with the terms of your Franchise Agreement, as designated by us in the
Manuals, and otherwise, as we instruct you. We will indemnify you against direct damages for trademark
infringement in a proceeding arising out of your use of the Licensed Marks, provided your use of the
Licensed Marks comply with the terms of your Franchise Agreement, the Manuals, our written instructions
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and, that you have timely notified us of the claim, have given us sole control of the defense and settlement
of the claim, and you are in compliance with your Franchise Agreement and, if applicable, Multi-Unit
Development Agreement. If we defend the claim, we have no obligation to indemnify or reimburse you
with respect to any fees or disbursements of any attorney that you retain.

If any third party establishes, to our satisfaction and in our discretion that its rights to the Licensed Marks
are, for any legal reason, superior to any of our rights or of a nature that we believe, in our discretion, that
it is advisable to discontinue and/or modify the Licensed Marks, then we will modify and/or replace the
Licensed Marks and you must use the substitutions, replacements and/or variations of and/or to the Licensed
Marks and use the those trademarks, service marks, logos and trade names required and designated by us.
In such event, our sole liability and obligation will be to reimburse you for the direct out-of-pocket costs of
complying with this obligation, which you must document to our satisfaction, including, by way of example,
alterations in signage and replacement of marketing materials.

ITEM 14
PATENTS., COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

We do not own any rights to, or licenses in any patent or copyrights material to the franchise System. We
may copyright advertising materials and design specifications, our Manuals, and other written materials
and items. We have not applied to the USPTO for the issuance of any patents.

You must keep as confidential our Manuals and any supplements to the Manuals. Our Manuals may take
the form of written materials and/or digitally distributed and stored materials and made available to you for
use in connection with the Franchised Business. The Manuals contain information about our System,
Approved Services and Products, System Supplies, proprietary products, marketing systems, training, and
confidential methods of operation. You must use all reasonable and prudent means to maintain the Manuals
and the information maintained in the Manuals as confidential and prevent any unauthorized copies,
recordings, reproduction, or distribution of the Manuals or the information contained in the Manuals. You
must also restrict access to the Manuals to management level employees who sign a confidentiality
agreement with you and are required by you to maintain the confidentiality of the Manuals and refrain from
distributing or disclosing the Manuals and the information contained in the Manuals. You must provide us
with immediate notice if you learn of any unauthorized use of the Manuals or of the information contained
in the Manuals, or any infringement or challenge to the proprietary or confidentiality of the information
contained in the Manuals. We will take any and all action(s), or refrain from taking action, that we
determine, in our discretion, to be appropriate. We may control any action or legal proceeding we choose
to bring. We need not participate in your defense or indemnify you for damages or expenses in a proceeding
involving a copyright or patent. If any third party establishes to our satisfaction, in our discretion, that it
possesses rights superior to ours, then you must modify or discontinue your use of these materials in
accordance with our written instructions.

ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL
OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

The Franchise Agreement requires that you or, if you are a Corporate Entity, your designated managing
shareholder, member or partner (your “Managing Owner”) be personally responsible for the management
and overall supervision of your Restaurant. Your Managing Owner must complete, to our satisfaction, our
initial training program and be approved by us. While we recommend that your Managing Owner personally
participate in the day-to-day management and on-site supervision and operations of your Restaurant, you
may hire an operating manager to supervise and manage the day-to-day on-site operations of your
Restaurant provided that your operating manager: (a) meets all of our minimum standards and criteria for
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managers; (b) completes our initial training program; and (c) signs our confidentiality agreements (an
“Operating Manager”). At all times, your Restaurant must be managed and supervised on-site by either a
Managing Owner or Operating Manager. If you own and operate multiple Restaurants then each Restaurant
must be managed and supervised on-site by an Operating Manager.

You and, if you are a Corporate Entity, each of your members, shareholders and/or partners (collectively,
“Owners”), must personally guarantee all of your obligations to us under the Franchise Agreement. Each
Owner and the spouse of each Owner must personally guarantee your obligations to us under the Franchise
Agreement. You and each Owner and spouse must also promise in writing that, among other things, during
the term of the Franchise Agreement you will not participate in any business that in any way competes with
the Franchised Business, and that for 24 months after the expiration of termination of the Franchise
Agreement (with said period being tolled during any periods of non-compliance), neither you nor your
Owners and their spouses will participate in any competitive business located within and/or servicing
customers located within your Designated Territory and a 25 mile radius surrounding your Designated
Territory. Further you will not participate in any competitive business located within and/or servicing
customers located within a 25 mile radius of any other Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurant and/or
the designated territory of any other Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurant. Your managers and all
other employees and agents with access to our confidential information will be required by us to sign a
confidentiality agreement.

ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You may only sell the Approved Services and Products as specified in the Manuals or otherwise approved
by us in writing and may only sell the products and services required by us. We can change the products
and services that you must offer. There is no limitation on our right to change the products and services
offered sold by Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurants. You are not limited to whom you may sell
products and services of your Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurant, provided you do so exclusively
from your Restaurant Location and as otherwise required by and in compliance with the standards we
determine for the System.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

The Franchise Relationship Under a Single Unit Franchise Agreement

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should read these
provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

Article in
Provision Franchise Summary
Agreement

a. Length of the franchise term 2.B. The term of your Franchise Agreement is 10 years.

b. Renewal or extension of the term | 15 If you meet our conditions for renewal you may renew your
franchise for two additional five year terms.

c. Requirements for franchisee to 15 To renew your franchise you must be in compliance with the

renew or extend terms of your Franchise Agreement, provide us with 180
days prior written notice of your request to renew, sign our
then current form of Franchise Agreement and related
agreements for the renewal term, sign a general release in our
favor, pay a renewal fee, remodel and upgrade your
Restaurant to meet our standards and specifications, secure
and possess the legal right to continue to occupy the premises
of your Restaurant location, and meet all other renewal
requirements contained in the Franchise Agreement. Your
Owners must be in compliance with their agreements with
us, including the Owner and Spouse Agreement and
Guaranty, and they must personally guarantee the terms of
your renewal Franchise Agreement which may contain terms
materially different from your current Franchise Agreement.

d. Termination by franchisee 16.B. You may terminate the Franchise Agreement if you are in
compliance with its terms, we are in material breach of the
Franchise Agreement, and we fail to cure the material breach
within 30 days of receiving written notice or, if the breach
cannot be cured within 30 days, such period of time that is
reasonable to cure the material breach.

e. Termination by franchisor Not Not applicable.
without cause applicable

f.  Termination by franchisor with 16.A. We can terminate if you are in default of the terms of the
“cause” Franchise Agreement.

g. “Cause” defined curable defaults | 16.A.(3), You have 10 days to cure a default where you fail to pay any
16.A.(4) fees and/or obligations due to us and/or to an affiliate of ours,
or if you fail to pay a supplier without, as determined by us,
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a legal justification, provided that the foregoing defaults were
not intentionally and knowingly in violation of the Franchise
Agreement.

You will have 30 days to cure a default where you fail to:
timely lease a location that we approve for your Restaurant;
timely develop and open your Restaurant; operate your
Restaurant in accordance with the specifications, standards,
and requirements set forth in our Manuals; develop or operate
your Restaurant in compliance with all federal, state, and
local laws, rules, and regulations, unless, such violation
poses a threat to public health or safety; maintain insurance
coverage that we require; comply with our standards, systems
or specifications as we may designate or as otherwise
designated in the operations manual; and/or fail to operate
your Restaurant in conformity with our System or otherwise
violate the Franchise Agreement, except as to events of
default that are not curable.

h.

“Cause” defined non-curable
defaults

16.A.(1),
16.A.(2)

The following are defaults that cannot be cured: three or
more instances where you commit a curable default, whether
or not you timely cured such default in each instance; you
intentionally and knowingly refuse to comply with the terms
of the Franchise Agreement, and/or the standards
specifications, and/or requirements set forth in the operations
manual and/or as communicated to you by us from time to
time; you intentionally, knowingly, or negligently operate
the Franchised Business in violation of applicable laws,
rules, and regulations and, in doing so, create a foreseeable,
imminent, and/or immediate threat to the health and safety of
others; you abandon the Franchised Business or fail to
maintain the required leasehold and/or ownership interests in
your Restaurant Locations; you or your Owners intentionally
made a material statement or omission in questionnaires
submitted to us; the data, information, and/or records that you
record and/or submit to us are intentionally misleading or
false; you transfer or attempt to transfer the Franchised
Business or the ownership interests in your franchise
company without our approval; you disclose or permit the
disclosure of information contained in the operations manual
and/or of confidential information; you or your Owners
engage in intentionally dishonest or unethical conduct that
impacts our System; you and/or your Owners breach and, if
such breach is capable of a cure, fail to timely cure another
agreement with us including the Owner and Spouse
Agreement and Guaranty; you and your Owners and
managers fail to complete, to our satisfaction, our initial and
on-going training programs; you fail to notify us of the
misuse of confidential information and you fail to protect
same; you misappropriate or misuse the Licensed Marks; you
are deemed insolvent, make an assignment for the benefit of
creditors, admit in writing your inability to pay debts; are
adjudicated bankrupt, file a voluntary bankruptcy petition or
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have one filed against you, and/or you acquiesce to the
appointment of a trustee or receiver, or a court orders one;
execution is levied against the Franchised Business; a final
judgment is entered against the Franchised Business and is
not satisfied within 30 days; you are dissolved; a lawsuit or
action is commenced against the Franchised Business to
foreclose on a lien on equipment of the Franchised Business
and such action is not dismissed after 60 days; real or
personal property used by the Franchised Business is sold or
levied by a sheriff or other law enforcement officer; and/or
you abandon or fail to continuously own and operate the
Franchised Business.

1.

Franchisee’s obligations on
termination/non-renewal

You must: pay all sums that you owe to us under the
Franchise Agreement and all other agreements with us; cease
owning and operating the Franchised Business; cease
representing yourself as a franchisee of ours; permanently
cease using and/or accessing the System, the Licensed
Marks, our confidential information, the operations manual,
the Business Management System, the Business
Management System Data, and the System Supplies; return
the operations manual and all confidential information to us
in the original form provided to you and document the
destruction of all electronic files related to same; completely
de-identify the location and/or facility associated with the
Franchised Business; as requested by us, transfer to us all
data, telephone listings, digital media, accounts, web listings
and websites associated with the Franchised Business; and
abide by the post-termination non-competition covenants and
restrictions.

Assignment of the contract by
franchisor

14.A.

No restriction on our right to assign.

“Transfer” by franchisee-
definition

14.B.

A transfer means and includes, whether voluntary or
involuntary, conditional or unconditional, direct or indirect:
(a) an assignment, sale, gift, transfer, pledge or sub-
franchise; (b) the grant of a mortgage, charge, lien or security
interest, including, without limitation, the grant of a collateral
assignment; (c) a merger, consolidation, exchange of shares
or other ownership interests, issuance of additional
ownership interests or securities representing or potentially
representing ownership interests, or redemption of
ownership interests; and (d) a sale or exchange of voting
interests or securities convertible to voting interests, or an
agreement granting the right to exercise or control the
exercise of the voting rights of any holder of ownership
interests or to control the operations or affairs of Franchisee.

L.

Franchisor’s approval of transfer
by franchisee

14.B.

Transfers require our prior written consent, which may be
granted or withheld in our discretion.
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m. Conditions for franchisor’s
approval of transfer

14.C.

For approval of your transfer, you must provide us with 30
days prior written notice of the proposed transfer; you and
your Owners must not have defaulted in your obligations
under the Franchise Agreement and all other agreements with
us; you and your Owners must be in compliance with your
obligations under the Franchise Agreement and all other
agreements with us; the transferee must agree to be bound by
all of the terms and provisions of the Franchise Agreement;
the transferee’s owners and their spouses must personally
guarantee all of the terms and provisions of the Franchise
Agreement; you and your Owners and their spouses must
sign a general release in favor of us; the transfer must provide
for the assignment and/or ownership of the approved location
for the Franchised Business, and the transferees continued
use and occupancy of such location throughout the term of
the Franchise Agreement; the assets of the Franchised
Business must be transferred to the transferee; the transferee
and the transferee’s owners and managers, at the transferee’s
expense must complete our training programs; we waive our
right of first refusal; we approve of the transfer and transferee
in writing and subject to our discretion; and you pay the
Transfer Fee (subject to applicable state laws).

n. Franchisor’s right of first refusal
to acquire franchisee’s business

14.F.

We have the right to match any offer to purchase your
Restaurant or the Corporate Entity operating your
Restaurant.

0. Franchisor’s option to purchase
franchisee’s business

Not
applicable

Not applicable.

p. Death or disability of franchisee

14.D.

If you are an individual, within 30 days of the death or
permanent disability of Franchisee, your executor and/or
legal representative must appoint an Operating Manager
approved by us and within 60 days of such appointment the
Operating Manager must complete, to our satisfaction, our
initial training program. Within 12 months of the date of
death or disability, the Franchise Agreement must be
transferred to a transferee approved by us and otherwise
transferred in accordance with the terms of the Franchise
Agreement. If the franchisee is a Corporate Entity, within 30
days of the death or permanent disability of your Managing
Owner, if there are other Owners, must appoint a replacement
Operating Manager approved by us and within 60 days of
such appointment the replacement Operating Manager must
complete, to our satisfaction, our initial training program.

g. Non-competition covenants
during the term of the franchise

No involvement in any competitive business and must
comply with confidentiality, non-disclosure and non-
solicitation covenants.

r. Non-competition covenants after
the franchise is terminated or
expires

6, 17.E.

No involvement, ownership, or interest whatsoever for 24
months in any competing business in: your Designated
Territory; a 25-mile radius of your Designated Territory; a
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25-mile radius of the Designated Territory of any other
Restaurant; and you must comply with confidentiality, non-
disclosure and non-solicitation covenants.

s. Modification of the agreement

18.L.

Requires writing signed by you and us, except for unilateral
changes that we may make to the Manuals or our unilateral
reduction of the scope of a restrictive covenant that we may
make in our discretion.

t.  Integration/merger clauses

18.M.

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement and schedules to
the Franchise Agreement and the respective signed exhibits
to the Franchise Agreement are binding, subject to state law.
Nothing in any agreement is intended to disclaim the express
representations made in the Franchise Disclosure Document,
its exhibits, and amendments.

u. Dispute resolution by arbitration
or mediation

18.G.

Except for certain claims for injunctive relief, all disputes
must first be submitted to non-binding mediation in Sussex
County, Delaware and, if mediation is unsuccessful, then to
binding arbitration in Sussex County, Delaware. This
provision is subject to applicable state law.

v. Choice of forum

18.G.

All mediation, arbitration and, if applicable, litigation
proceedings must be conducted in, or closest to, state court
of general jurisdiction that is within or closest to Sussex
County, Delaware or, if appropriate, the United States
District Court nearest to our corporate headquarters at the
time such action is filed. This provision is subject to
applicable state law.

w. Choice of law

18.F.

Delaware law will govern. However, this provision is subject
to state law and as otherwise disclosed in Exhibit I to this
Disclosure Document.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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The Franchise Relationship Under a Multi-Unit Development Agreement

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the Franchise and related agreements. You should
read these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

Sections in

with “cause”

Provision TR Summa
Development Ty
Agreement
a. Length of the franchise term | 3 Varies depending on the number of Restaurants to be
developed and the Development Area. The agreement
commences on the effective date and the term
automatically expires at the earlier of the opening of the
final Restaurant required for development, or the last day
of the calendar month in which the final Restaurant was
required to be open under the Multi-Unit Development
Agreement.
b. Renewal or extension of the | Not There is no renewal of the Multi-Unit Development
term applicable Agreement.
c¢. Requirements for franchisee | Not There is no renewal of the Multi-Unit Development
to renew or extend applicable Agreement.
d. Termination by franchisee Not There is no option for your termination of the Multi-Unit
applicable Development Agreement.
e. Termination by franchisor Not We can terminate without cause only if you and we
without cause applicable mutually agree, in writing, to terminate.
f.  Termination by franchisor 3.2 We may terminate your Multi-Unit Development

Agreement with cause. Your Multi-Unit Development
Agreement can be terminated by us if: (a) you abandon
your obligations under the Multi-Unit Development
Agreement; (b) if you for four consecutive months, or any
shorter period that indicates an intent by you to
discontinue your development of Restaurants within the
Development Area; (c) if you become insolvent or you
are adjudicated bankrupt, or if any action is taken by you,
or by others against you, under any insolvency,
bankruptcy or reorganization act, or if you make an
assignment for the benefit or creditors or a receiver is
appointed by you; (d) if you fail to meet your
development obligations under the Development
Schedule for any single Development Period including,
but not limited to, your failure to establish, open and/or
maintain the cumulative number of Restaurants in
accordance with Development Schedule; and/or (e) in the
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event that any one Franchise Agreement is terminated
respecting any Restaurant and/or any other Franchise
Agreement between you and us.

“Cause” defined curable Not Not applicable.

defaults applicable

“Cause” defined non-curable | 3.2 Your Multi-Unit Development Agreement can be

defaults terminated by us if: (a) you abandon your obligations
under the Multi-Unit Development Agreement; (b) if you
for four consecutive months, or any shorter period that
indicates an intent by you to discontinue your
development of Restaurants within the Development
Area; (c) if you become insolvent or you are adjudicated
bankrupt, or if any action is taken by you, or by others
against you, under any insolvency, bankruptcy or
reorganization act, or if you make an assignment for the
benefit or creditors or a receiver is appointed by you; (d)
if you fail to meet your development obligations under
the Development Schedule for any single Development
Period including, but not limited to, your failure to
establish, open and/or maintain the cumulative number of
Restaurants in accordance with Development Schedule;
and/or (e) in the event that any one Franchise Agreement
is terminated respecting any Restaurant and/or any other
Franchise Agreement with us.

Franchisee’s obligations on Not You lose all rights under the Multi-Unit Development

termination/non-renewal applicable Agreement. There are no renewal rights respecting the
Multi-Unit Development Agreement.

Assignment of the contract 6 There are no restrictions on our right to assign.

by franchisor

“Transfer” by franchisee- 6 You have no right to transfer the Multi-Unit Development

definition Agreement.

Franchisor’s approval of 6 You have no right to transfer the Multi-Unit Development

transfer by franchisee Agreement.

Conditions for franchisor’s 6 You have no right to transfer the Multi-Unit Development

approval of transfer Agreement.

Franchisor’s right of first Not Not applicable.

refusal to acquire applicable

franchisee’s business

Franchisor’s option to Not Not applicable.

purchase franchisee’s applicable

business
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Death or disability of
franchisee

Not
applicable

Not applicable.

Non-competition covenants
during the term of the
franchise

Not
applicable

Not applicable as to Multi-Unit Development Agreement.
However, each Restaurant developed pursuant to Multi-
Unit Development Agreement will be subject to non-
competition covenants set forth in each respective
Franchise Agreement.

Non-competition covenants
after the franchise is
terminated or expires

Not
applicable

Not applicable as to Multi-Unit Development Agreement.
However, each Restaurant developed pursuant to Multi-
Unit Development Agreement will be subject to non-
competition covenants set forth in each respective
Franchise Agreement.

Modification of the
agreement

5.3,7.11

Only by written agreement between you and us or if
governing law requires a modification. We can change the
form of the Franchise Agreement for future Restaurants
which will not alter your obligations under the Multi-Unit
Development Agreement.

Integration/merger clauses

7.12

The Multi-Unit Development Agreement is the entire
agreement between you and us relating to the
development of the Exclusive Territory. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, nothing in any agreement is intended to
disclaim the express representations made in the
Franchise Disclosure Document, its exhibits and
amendments.

Dispute resolution by
arbitration or mediation

7.5,7.6

Except for certain claims for injunctive relief, all disputes
must first be submitted to non-binding mediation in
Sussex County, Delaware and, if mediation is
unsuccessful, then to binding arbitration in Sussex
County, Delaware. This provision is subject to applicable
state law.

Choice of forum

7.5,7.6

All mediation, arbitration and, if applicable, litigation
proceedings must be conducted in, or closest to, State
court of general jurisdiction that is within or closest to
Sussex County, Delaware or, if appropriate, the United
States District Court nearest to our corporate headquarters
at the time such action is filed. This provision is subject to
applicable state law.

Choice of law

7.5,7.6

Delaware law will govern. However, this provision is
subject to state law and as otherwise disclosed in Exhibit
I to this Disclosure Document.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not currently use any public figure to promote our franchise. No public figure is currently involved
in our management.

ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets if there is a reasonable basis for the
information and if the information is included in the Disclosure Document. Financial performance
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the
actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) franchisor supplements the
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at
a particular location or under particular circumstances.

DEFINITIONS

(a) Calendar Year — means, as to each respective year, the 12 month period commencing on January 1 and
ending on December 31.

(b) Company Owned Outlet — means an Outlet owned either directly or indirectly by us, our affiliate or
any person identified in Item 2 of this Disclosure Document. A Company Owned Outlet also includes
any Outlet that is operated as a joint venture owned in part by us, our affiliate or any person identified
in Item 2 of this Disclosure Document, or that is managed by us our affiliate or any person identified
in Item 2.

(c) Franchise Outlet — refers to a Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurant operated under a Franchise
Agreement that is not a Company Owned Outlet.

(d) Gross Sales — means the total revenue derived by each Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Restaurant less
sales tax, discounts, allowances and returns.

() New Company Owned Outlet — means, as to a particular Calendar Year, a Company Owned Outlet that
for the first time opened and commenced operations during the Calendar Year. For example, if a
Company Owned Outlet first opened for business in February 2023, as to the 2023 Calendar Year, the
Company Owned Outlet would qualify as a New Company Owned Outlet and not as an Operational
Company Owned Outlet, see definition below. If this Company Owned Outlet remained in operation
throughout the 2024 Calendar Year, it would qualify as an Operational Company Owned Outlet during
the 2024 Calendar Year.

(f) New Franchise Outlet — means, as to a particular Calendar Year, a Franchise Outlet that for the first
time opened and commenced operations during the Calendar Year. For example, if a Franchise Outlet
first opened for business in February 2023, as to the 2023 Calendar Year, the Franchise Outlet would
qualify as a New Franchise Outlet and not as an Operational Franchise Outlet, see definition below. If
this Franchise Outlet remained in operation throughout the 2024 Calendar Year, it would qualify as an
Operational Franchise Outlet during the 2024 Calendar Year.

(g) Operational Company Owned Outlet — means, as to a particular Calendar Year, a Company Owned
Outlet that was open and in operation on or prior to the commencement of the Calendar Year. For
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example, if a Company Owned Outlet first opened for business in February 2023, as to the 2023
Calendar Year, the Company Owned Outlet would qualify as a New Company Owned Outlet, see
definition above, and not as an Operational Company Owned Outlet. If this Company Owned Outlet
remained in operation throughout the 2024 Calendar Year, it would qualify as an Operational Company
Owned Outlet during the 2024 Calendar Year. For the purposes of this Item 19, we have also included
as Operational Company Owned Outlets those Company Owned Outlets that were transferred to
franchisees during the Calendar Year that did not experience any interruption in operations due to the
transfer.

(h) Operational Franchise Outlet — means, as to a particular Calendar Year, a Franchise Outlet that was
open and in operation on or prior to the commencement of the Calendar Year. For example, if a
Franchise Outlet first opened for business in February 2023, as to the 2023 Calendar Year, the Franchise
Outlet would qualify as a New Franchise Outlet, see definition above, and not as an Operational
Franchise Outlet. If this Franchise Outlet remained in operation throughout the 2024 Calendar Year, it
would qualify as an Operational Franchise Outlet during the 2024 Calendar Year.

(i) Outlet — refers to a Mason’s Famous Restaurant that is either a Company Owned Outlet or a Franchise
Outlet, as the context requires.

BASES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The financial information was not prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles. Data for our Company Owned Outlets is based on information reported to us by our affiliates
and data for our Operational Franchise Outlets is based on information reported to us by our franchisees.
The information in this analysis has not been audited, is based on historical financial data and is not a
forecast or projection of future financial performance.

COMPANY OWNED OUTLETS

During the 2023 Calendar Year, we had a total of three Company Owned Outlets. Of our three Company
Owned Outlets, two Company Owned Outlets were Operational Company Owned Outlets and one Outlet
was a New Company Owned Outlet. During the 2024 Calendar Year, we had a total of four Company
Owned Outlets, all of which were Operational Company Owned Outlets. We exclude one Operational
Company Owned Outlet from this Item 19 for the 2023 and 2024 Calendar Years because the Company
Owned Outlet was not representative of a Franchised Business. We do not include the financial performance
of our New Company Owned Outlets that were not open for the full reported Calendar Year.

Material financial and operational characteristics that are reasonably anticipated to differ from future
operational franchise outlets include: (a) managerial skill and efficiency experienced by our Company
Owned Outlets as a result of our extensively experienced management team; (b) brand recognition within
the local markets in which our Company Owned Outlets operate; and (c) no obligation to pay ongoing
monthly fees that a franchisee will pay to us, such as Royalty Fees and Brand Development Fund Fees.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Company Owned Outlets

Outlet Name

Description

Dupont Circle, D.C.

This Outlet is located at 1303 19™ Street NW, Washington, D.C. 20036 and is
representative of the Franchised Business. This Outlet is an inline store with access

from the street level. This Outlet opened in June 2020 and constitutes an Operational
Company Owned Outlet for the 2023 and 2024 Calendar Years.

Western Market, D.C.

This Outlet is located at 2000 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Washington, D.C. 20006
and is not representative of the Franchised Business. This Outlet is located within a
food hall, which is a non-traditional location that is different than a Restaurant
Location that would be approved by us. This Outlet opened in September 2021 and
constitutes an Operational Company Owned Outlet for the 2023 and 2024 Calendar
Years, however, we exclude data for this Outlet from Item 19 because it is not
representative of a Franchised Business.

Long Branch, New Jersey

This Outlet is located at 78 Ocean Avenue N, Long Branch, New Jersey 07740 and is
representative of the Franchised Business. This location is an inline store with access
from the street. This Outlet opened in May 2023 and, as such, constitutes a New
Company Owned Outlet for the 2023 Calendar Year and an Operational Company
Owned Outlet for the 2024 Calendar Year.

Fort Myers, Florida

This Outlet is located at 2122 First Street, Fort Myers, Florida 33901 and is
representative of the Franchised Business. This location is an inline store with access
from the street. This Outlet opened in January 2020 as a Franchise Outlet and was
reacquired by our affiliate in November 2024 and became a Company Owned Outlet.
This Outlet did not experience an interruption in operations as a result of the transfer
and, as such, constitutes an Operational Franchise Outlet for the 2023 Calendar Year
and an Operational Company Owned Outlet for the 2024 Calendar Year.

Table 1

Company Owned Outlets
Gross Sales Data
2023 and 2024 Calendar Years

Outlet 2023 Calendar Year 2024 Calendar Year
Dupont Circle, D.C. $1,044,185 $1,065,132
Long Branch, New Jersey N/A $900,100
Fort Myers, Florida N/A $700,732
FRANCHISE OUTLETS

During the 2023 Calendar Year we had a total of 25 Franchise Outlets. Of those 25 Franchise Outlets, 20
Franchise Outlets were Operational Franchise Outlets and five Franchise Outlets were New Franchise
Outlets. During the 2024 Calendar Year we had a total of 31 Franchise Outlets. Of those 31 Franchise
Outlets, 22 Franchise Outlets were Operational Franchise Outlets, six Franchise Outlets were New
Franchise Outlets, two Franchise Outlets were terminated, and one Franchise Outlet was reacquired by our
affiliate and became a Company Owned Outlet. The Operational Franchise Outlets are comprised of inline

stores, food court locations,

and locations within indoor and outdoor malls. We do not include the financial

performance of New Franchise Outlets that were not open for the full reported Calendar Year.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Table 3

Operational Franchise Outlets
Gross Sales Data
2023 and 2024 Calendar Years
Outlet Name 2023 Calendar Year 2024 Calendar Year
Rehoboth Beach, Delaware $1,176,568 $1,060,839
Belvedere Square, Maryland $416,889 $339,964
National Harbor, Maryland $1,497,602 $1,300,334
Reston, Virginia $742,745 $680,112
Charleston, South Carolina $543,325 $516,388
Inner Harbor, Maryland $719,610 $567,620
Raleigh, North Carolina $755,103 $665,073
Miami, Florida $750,860 $698.,023
Georgetown, D.C. $970,777 N/A
Austin, Texas $725,159 $712,296
Virginia Beach, Virginia $811,874 $870,891
Annapolis, Maryland $845,801 $862,512
Fort Myers, Florida $992,199 N/A
Mall of America $725,379 $748,671
Shore Drive, Virginia $941,630 $890,707
Denver, Colorado $830,892 $717,032
Scottsdale, Arizona $871,225 $649,007
Cary, North Carolina $486,423 $402,256
Seattle, Washington $1,296,758 $1,347,519
Arlington, Virginia $850,712 $818,340
Wharf, D.C. N/A $900,317
Panama City Beach, Florida N/A $1,377,791
Fernandina Beach, Florida N/A $1,076,724
St. Petersburg, Florida N/A $565,191

Some Outlets have earned this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no assurance
that you’ll earn as much.

Written substantiation of the data used in preparing these sales figures will be made available to you upon
reasonable request.

Other than the preceding financial performance representations, Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC does
not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past financial
performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing
outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial
performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor’s
management by contacting Daniel Beck, Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC at 77 Franklin Street,
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 and 252-202-5683, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state
regulatory agencies.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

TABLE NO. 1
SYSTEMWIDE OUTLET SUMMARY
FOR YEARS 2022 to 2024

2022 11 20 +9
Franchised 2023 20 25 +5
2024 25 28 +3
2022 5 2 -3
Company Owned 2023 2 3 +1
2024 3 4 +1
2022 16 22 +6
Total Outlets 2023 22 28 +6
2024 28 32 +4

TABLE NO. 2

TRANSFER OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS
(OTHER THAN THE FRANCHISOR)

FOR YEARS 2022 to 2024

State Year Number of Transfers
2022 0
Arizona 2023 1
2024 0
2022 0
South Carolina 2023 1
2024 0
2022 0
Totals 2023 2
2024 0

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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TABLE NO. 3

STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS
FOR YEARS 2022 to 2024

State

Year

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

Terminations

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired

by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations
for Other
Reasons

Outlets at
End of

Year

Arizona

2022

(e

0

2023

2024

Colorado

2022

2023

2024

Delaware

2022

2023

2024

Florida

2022

2023

2024

Maryland

2022

2023

2024

Minnesota

2022

2023

2024

North
Carolina

2022

2023

2024

South
Carolina

2022

2023

2024

Texas

2022

2023

2024

Virginia

2022

2023

2024

Washington

2022

2023

2024

Washington,
D.C.

2022

2023

2024
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2022

11

20

Totals

2023

20

(e)

[e)

[e)

25

2024

25

28

TABLE NO. 4

STATUS OF COMPANY OWNED OUTLETS
FOR YEARS 2022 to 2024

State

Year

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

Outlets
Reacquired
by

Franchisor

Outlets
Closed

Outlets
Sold to
Franchisee

Outlets at
End of

Year

Florida

2022

0

0

2023

2024

Maryland

2022

2023

2024

Minnesota

2022

2023

2024

New Jersey

2022

2023

2024

Washington,
D.C.

2022

2023

2024

Totals

2022

2023

2024
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TABLE NO. 5§

PROJECTED OPENINGS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024
Franchise Agreement Projected New Projected New Company
State Signed but Outlet Not | Franchised Outlets in the Owned Outlets in the
Opened Next Fiscal Year Next Fiscal Year

Florida 1 1 0
North Carolina 1 1 0
Pennsylvania 1 1 0
Virginia 2 2 0
Washington 1 1 0
Totals 6 6 0

Notes to Tables:

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave
the franchise system.

During the last three fiscal years, some current or former franchisees have signed confidentiality clauses
with us that restrict them from discussing with you their experiences as a franchisee in our franchise system.
There are no trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the franchise system being offered
in this Disclosure Document.

Exhibit G to this Disclosure Document contains a list of our then current franchisees as of the end of the
Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document.

Exhibit H to this Disclosure Document contains a list of franchisees that had an outlet terminated, cancelled,
not renewed or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under our Franchise Agreement
during our most recently completed fiscal year or who has not communicated with us within 10 weeks of
the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document.

ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached as Exhibit D are our audited financial statements as of December 31, 2022, December 31, 2023,
and December 31, 2024. We were established on December 14, 2015 and our fiscal year ends on December
31.

ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

Attached to this Disclosure Document or to the Exhibits attached to and comprising the Franchise
Agreement attached to this Disclosure Document are copies of the following franchise and other contracts
and agreements in use or proposed for use:

Exhibits to this Disclosure Document
Exhibit E Franchise Agreement
Exhibit F Multi-Unit Development Agreement
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Exhibit I State Specific Addenda

Schedules and Exhibits to the Franchise Agreement
Schedule 1 Restaurant Location and Designated Territory Acknowledgment

Schedule 2 Statement of Franchise Owners

Exhibit 1 Owner and Spouse Agreement and Guaranty

Exhibit 2 Confidentiality Agreement

Exhibit 3 Site Selection Acknowledgment

Exhibit 4 Lease Agreement Rider

Exhibit 5 Collateral Assignment of Lease

Exhibit 6 Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Digital Media Accounts
Exhibit 7 ACH Authorization Form

Exhibit 8 General Release

Schedules and Exhibits to the Multi-Unit Development Agreement
Schedule A Development Information Sheet

Individual state law may supersede the provisions contained in your Franchise Agreement and, if
applicable, your Multi-Unit Development Agreement respecting the requirement that you execute a general
release as a condition to assignment, sale or transfer. See, the state specific addendums contained in Exhibit
I of this Disclosure Document.

ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

Two copies of a detachable receipt in Exhibit K are located at the very end of this Disclosure Document.

Please sign one copy of the receipt and return it to us at the following address Daniel Beck, Mason’s Lobster
Franchising LLC, 77 Franklin Street, Annapolis, Maryland 21401. The duplicate is for your records.

[THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ENDS HERE]
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List of State Administrators

California

Department of Financial Protection and Innovation

320 West 4th Street, Suite 750
Los Angeles, CA 90013

651 Bannon Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95811
866-275-2677

Connecticut

Connecticut Banking Commissioner
Department of Banking

Securities & Business Investments Division
260 Constitution Plaza

Hartford, CT 06103

Florida

Division of Consumer Services
Attn: Business Opportunities
2005 Apalachee Parkway
Tallahassee, FL. 32399

Hawaii

Commissioner of Securities

Department of Commerce & Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

335 Merchant Street, Room 203

Honolulu, HI 96813

Illinois

Office of the Attorney General
Franchise Bureau

500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706

Indiana

Indiana Secretary of State

Indiana Securities Division

Franchise Section

302 W. Washington Street, Room E-111
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Kentucky
Office of the Attorney General

Consumer Protection Division
Attn: Business Opportunity
1024 Capital Center Drive
Frankfort, KY 40601

Maine

Department of Professional and Financial
Regulations

Bureau of Banking

Securities Division

121 Statehouse Station

Augusta, ME 04333

Maryland
Office of the Attorney General

Securities Division
200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, MD 21202

Michigan

Michigan Department of the Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division

Antitrust and Franchise Unit

670 Law Building

P.O. Box 30213

Lansing, MI 48909

Minnesota

Minnesota Department of Commerce
Securities Division

85 7th Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, MN 55101

Nebraska

Nebraska Department of Banking and Finance
Commerce Court

1230 O Street, Suite 400

Lincoln, NE 68509

New York

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor
New York, NY 10005
212-416-8222

North Carolina

Secretary of State

Securities Division

300 North Salisbury Street, Suite 100
Raleigh, NC 27603

North Dakota

Securities Department

600 East Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol
Fourteenth Floor Dept 414

Bismarck, ND 58505-0510

Phone 701-328-4712
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List of State Administrators (continued)

Rhode Island

Department of Business Registration
Division of Securities

233 Richmond Street, Suite 232
Providence, RI 02903

South Carolina

Office of the Secretary of State
1205 Pendleton Street

Edgar Brown Building, Suite 525
Columbia, SC 29201

South Dakota
Franchise Office
Division of Securities
910 E. Sioux Avenue
Pierre, SD 57501

Texas

Office of the Secretary of State
Statutory Document Section
1019 Brazos Street

Austin, TX 78701

Utah

Utah Department of Commerce
Division of Consumer Protection
160 East Three Hundred South
P.O. Box 146704

Salt Lake City, UT 84114

Virginia

State Corporation Commission

Division of Securities and Retail Franchising
1300 E. Main Street, 9th Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Washington
Department of Financial Institutions

Securities Division
P.O. Box 9033
Olympia, WA 98507
360-902-8700

Wisconsin

Franchise Office

Wisconsin Securities Commission
P.O. Box 1768

Madison, WI 53701
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Agents for Service of Process

Mason’s Lobster Franchising LLC
77 Franklin Street, Annapolis, Maryland 21401
Attn: Daniel Beck, President

California New York
Department of Financial Protection and Innovation Secretary of the State of New York
320 West 4th Street, Suite 750 99 Washington Avenue

Los Angeles, CA 90013

651 Bannon Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95811
866-275-2677

Connecticut

Banking Commissioner

Department of Banking

Securities and Business Investment Division
260 Constitution Plaza

Hartford, CT 06103

Hawaii

Commissioner of Securities

Department of Commerce & Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

335 Merchant Street, Room 203

Honolulu, HI 96813

Illinois

[llinois Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706

Maryland
Maryland Securities Commissioner

200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, MD 21202

Michigan

Michigan Department of Commerce
Corporation and Securities Bureau
6546 Mercantile Way

Lansing, MI 48910

Minnesota

Commissioner of Commerce of Minnesota
Department of Commerce

85 7th Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, MN 55101

Albany, NY 12231

North Dakota

North Dakota Securities Department
Securities Commissioner

600 East Boulevard Avenue, 5th Floor
Department 414

Bismarck, ND 58505

701-328-4712

Rhode Island

Director of Department of Business Regulation
233 Richmond Street, Suite 232

Providence, RI 02903

South Dakota
Director, Division of Securities
Department of Commerce and Regulation
445 East Capitol Avenue

Pierre, SD 57501

Virginia

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission
1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor
Richmond, VA 23219

Washington
Securities Administrator

Washington Department of Financial
Institutions
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING LLC
Operations Manual for Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls
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Refunds/Credits
Promotions/Gift Cards 52
Customer Surveys 58
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Illness 78
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Employer Responsibilities 79
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Hiring Staff
Recruiting and Hiring
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Sample Help-Wanted Ads
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Acknowledgment Of Independent Certified Public Accountants

ClarkHirth agrees to the inclusion in the Franchise Disclosure Document issued by
Mason'’s Lobster Franchising, LLC on May 21, 2025, as it may be amended, of its report
dated March 28, 2025 relating to the financial statements of Mason’s Lobster
Franchising, LLC as of December 31, 2024.

Cobopné At (P

ClarkHirth CPAs LLC
www.clarkhirth.com
860-904-4436

16 Spring Lane, Suite 3
Farmington, CT 06032
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CLARKHIRTH

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC
Annapolis, Maryland

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC,
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements
of income and changes in members’ deficit and cash flows for the years then ended, and the

related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC and to meet other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mason’s
Lobster Franchising, LLC’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date
that the financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
Jjudgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e I[dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC’s ability
to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

ColnérHth, CP%

Farmington, Connecticut
March 28, 2025



MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 96,595 $§ 13,358
Accounts receivable 28,287 21,637
Total current assets 124,882 34,995
Other assets:
Notes receivable 92,830 -
ROU asset for operating lease, net 24,177 2,923
Due from related parties, net 11,376 -
Security deposit 2,000 -
Total other assets 130,383 2,923
Total assets $ 255265 $ 37918
Liabilities and Members' Deficit
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $§ 93305 § 45928
Deferred revenue, current portion 440,000 132,500
Operating lease liability, current portion 19,200 2,923
Long-term debt, current portion 30,891 51,818
Line of credit 34,473 31,822
Total current liabilities 617,869 264,991
Other liabilities:
Deferred revenue, net of current portion 163,500 175,000
Operating lease liability, net of current portion 5,577 -
Long-term debt 210,393 203,181
Due to related parties, net - 27,039
Total long-term liabilities 379,470 405,220
Total liabilities 997,339 670,211
Members' deficit (742,074) (632,293)
Total liabilities and members' deficit $ 255265 $ 37918

See Independent Auditors” Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING. LLC
STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ DEFICIT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
Franchise revenues: :
Franchise fees $ 172,500 h 146,250
Royalties 1,015,984 936,617
Advertising fees 138,321 110,019
Rebates and other 205,022 190,400
Total revenues, net 1,531,827 1,383,286
Operating expenses:
Advertising 22,667 26,668
Amortization of right-of-use operating lease assets 13,793 -
Brand development 331,760 271,716
Commission fees 167,517 150,706
Compensation and benefits 313,567 191,870
Insurance 12,342 10,910
Merchant fees 11,189 13,479
Office expense 40,607 47,052
Professional fees 61,374 60,567
Rent 26,986 11,365
Royalty expense 139,752 153,808
Taxes 10,995 21,074
Travel 62,380 53,008
Total operating expenses 1,214,929 1,012,223
Other income (expenses):
Interest expense (53,629) (29,383)
Interest income 982 -
Loss on asset sale (27,225) -
Total other income (expenses) (79,872) (29,383)
Net income 237,026 341,680
Members' deficit, beginning of year (632,293) (276,358)
Members' capital contributions 240,077 101,100
Members' distributions (586,884) (798,715)
Members' deficit, end of year $ (742,074) $ (632,293)

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING. LLC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Notes receivable
ROU asset for operating lease
Due from related party
Security deposit
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Operating lease liability
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Proceeds from line of credit
Principal payments on line of credit
Increase (decrease) in due to/from related party
Members' capital contributions
Members' distributions
Net cash used by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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2024 2023
237,026 341,680
(6,650) (2,449)
(92,830) -
(21,254) (11,620)
(11,376) -
(2,000) -
47,377 (21,836)
296,000 63,750
21,854 11,620
468,147 381,145
98,000 151,181
(111,715) (103,682)
- 8,000
2,651 (4,585)
(27,039) 56,401
240,077 101,100
(586,884) (798,715)
(384,909) (590,300)
83,238 (209,155)
13,358 222,513
96,596 13,358
53,629 29,383




NOTE 1

NOTE 2

MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING. LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

ORGANIZATION

Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC (the “Company™) is a Delaware limited liability
company, which was organized on December 14, 2015. The Company is organized to
acquire, construct, own, operate, manage, finance, refinance, lease, develop and/or
franchise restaurants in the United States of America.

A summary of franchise activity is as follows:

2024 2023
Units operating at January 1 28 22
Units opened 6 6
Units closed (2) -
Units operating at December 31 32 28

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting standards set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™). The
FASB sets generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America
(“GAAP”) that the Company follows to ensure its financial conditions, results of
operations, and cash flows are consistently reported. References to GAAP issued by the
FASB in these footnotes are to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“FASB

ASC”).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences
The Company’s obligation for employees’ rights to receive compensation for future
absences such as vacation and sick pay has not been accrued as they could not be

reasonably estimated.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING. LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

Income Taxes

The Company, with the consent of its members, elected to be taxed as a partnership
under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. Under these provisions, the
Company generally does not pay federal or state income taxes on its taxable income.
Instead, the members of the Company are taxed on their proportionate share of the
Company’s taxable income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid
investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash

equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

The Company considers the following factors when determining expected credit losses
for receivables: franchisee creditworthiness, past transaction history with the
franchisee, and current economic industry trends. Management believes that the
composition of trade receivables at year-end is consistent with historical conditions as
credit terms and practices and the customer base has not changed significantly. In the
latest long-term economic projections from December 2024, the Federal Reserve
forecast U.S. GDP growth growing to 2.5% in 2024 and the U.S. unemployment rate
remaining steady around 4.1%. The Fed also projects core PCE inflation will increase
to 2.5% in 2024, and it anticipates an average fed funds interest rate of 4.5% for the
year. Despite this information, the Company believes all of its accounts receivable at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, are fully collectible, and accordingly, no allowance for
credit losses have been recorded.

Advertising
Advertising costs are charged to operators when incurred. Advertising expense was

$22,667 and $26,668 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING. LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

Revenue Recognition
Effective January 1, 2019, the Company adopted the provision and expanded
requirements described in Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09.

The following policies apply to the Company’s major categories of revenue
transactions. Revenues are recognized when control of the promised goods or services
are transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be
entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. These revenues are recognized net
of discounts, waivers, and refunds.

The Company determines revenue recognition through the five-step model prescribed
by Topic 606 as follows:

Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;

Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

Determination of the transaction price;

Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the
contract;

¢ Recognition of revenue when, or as, performance obligations are satisfied.

Franchise fees and royalties

Contract consideration from franchisees primarily consist of initial or renewal franchise
fees, sales-based royalties, sales-based advertising fund fees and transfer fees payable
by a franchisee for the transfer of their franchise unit to another franchisee. The
Company also enters into multi-unit operator agreements ("MUOASs”) which grant a
franchisee the right to develop two or more franchise units. The Company collects an
upfront area development fee for the grant of such rights. The initial franchise fees and
upfront area development fees are nonrefundable and collected when the underlying
franchise agreement or MUOA is signed by the franchisee. Sales based royalties and
advertising fund fees are payable weekly. Renewal and transfer fees are payable when
an existing franchisee renews the franchise agreement for an additional term or when a
transfer to a third party occurs, respectively.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING. LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

Revenue Recognition— (Continued)

Franchise fees and royalties- (Continued)

The Company's primary performance obligation under the franchise agreement mainly
includes granting certain rights to access the Company's intellectual property and a
variety of activities relating to opening a franchise unit, including site selection,
training and other such activities commonly referred to collectively as "pre-opening
activities." The Company has elected to use the practical expedient for pre-opening
activities and considers the following as a single performance obligation: assistance in
selection of site; assistance in obtaining facilities and preparing facilities for their
intended use; training of franchisee’s personnel; preparation and distribution of
manuals; bookkeeping, information technology, and advisory services; and inspection,
testing and other quality control programs.

All other pre-opening activities have been determined to be highly interrelated and
interdependent to access the Company's intellectual property and therefore are
accounted for as a single performance obligation, which is satisfied by granting certain
rights to access the Company’s intellectual property over the term of each franchise
agreement.

The Company estimates the standalone selling price of training services that are not
brand specific using an adjusted market assessment approach. The Company first
allocates the initial franchise fees and the fixed consideration, under the franchise
agreement to the stand-alone selling price of the training services that are not brand
specific and the residual, if any, to the right to access the Company's: intellectual
property. Consideration allocated to training services that are not brand specific are
recognized ratably as the training services are rendered.

Initial and renewal franchise fees allocated to the right to access the Company's
intellectual property are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of
the respective franchise agreement. MUOAs generally consist of an obligation to grant
the right to open two or more units. These development rights are not distinct from
franchise agreements; therefore, upfront fees paid by franchisees for development rights
are deferred and apportioned to each franchise agreement signed by the franchisee. The
pro-rata amount apportioned to each franchise agreement is recognized as revenue in
the same manner as the initial and renewal franchise fees. Initial and renewal franchise
fees related to the MUOASs are recorded as contract receivable and contract liabilities at
their contract transaction price.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING. LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

Revenue Recognition— (Continued)

Franchise fees and royalties- (Continued)

Royalties are earned based on a percentage of franchisee's gross revenues. Franchise
royalties represent sales-based royalties that are related entirely to the use of the
Company's intellectual property and are recognized as franchisee sales occur and the
royalty is deemed collectible.

Advertising Fund

The Company maintains an advertising fund established to collect and administer funds
contributed for use in advertising and promotional programs for franchise units.
Advertising fund fees are collected from franchisees based on a percentage of
franchisee gross revenues. The Company has determined that it acts as a principal in the
collection and administration of the advertising fund and therefore recognizes the
revenues and expenses related to the advertising fund on a gross basis. The Company
has determined that the right to access its intellectual property and administration of the
advertising fund are highly interrelated and therefore are accounted for as a single
performance obligation. As a result, revenues from the advertising fund represent sales-
based royalties related to the right to access the Company's intellectual property, which
are recognized as franchisee sales occur. When advertising fund fees exceed the related
advertising fund expenses in a reporting period, advertising costs are accrued up to the
amount of advertising fund revenues recognized.

Rebates
Any rebate money received by the Company is recognized as each performance

obligation is satisfied.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING. LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 3 REVENUE AND RELATED CONTRACT BALANCES

Disaggregated revenues

The Company derives its revenues from franchisees located throughout the United
States. The economic risks of the Company's revenues are dependent on the strength of
the economy in the United States and its ability to collect on its contracts. The
Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geographic region
and timing of revenue recognition by type of revenues, as it believes this best depicts
how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected
by economic factors.

Revenues by geographic region in the were as follows:

2024 2023
Midatlantic United States $ 874,503 $ 836,734
Midwestern United States 41,485 39,443
Northeast United States 4,428 2,794
Southeast United States 502,567 364,365
Southwest United States 34,048 72,026
Western United States 74,796 67.924
$ 1.531,827 $ 1.383.286
Revenue by timing of recognition were as follows:
2024 2023
Point in time:
Franchise fees $ 172,500 $ 146,250
Royalties 1,015,984 936,617
Franchise advertising fees 138,321 110,019
Rebates and other 205,022 190.400
Total $ 1,531,827 $ 1.383,286
Over time:
Franchise fees $ - $ -

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING. LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 3 REVENUE AND RELATED CONTRACT BALANCES — (Continued)

Contract balances :
Contract liabilities are comprised of unamortized initial and renewal franchise fees

received from franchisees, which are presented as 'Deferred revenues' on the
accompanying balance sheets. A summary of significant changes in deferred franchise
fees are as follows:

2024 2023
Deferred franchise revenues at beginning of year $§ 307,500 $ 243,750
Revenue recognized during the year (172,500)  (146,250)
Additions for initial franchise fees received 468,500 210,000

$ 603.500 $§ 307.500

Deferred franchise fees consisted of the following:

024 2023
Franchise fees for units not yet opened $ 227,500 $§ 152,500
Revenue recognized during the year (97,500)  (135,000)
Additions for initial franchise fees received 303.500 210.000

$ 433,500 $ 227,500

The initial and renewal franchise fees on MUOAs that remain uncollected as of
December 31, 2024, and 2023, are reflected as "Accounts receivable" in the
accompanying balance sheets and the related contract liabilities are included in
"Deferred revenues" in the accompanying balance sheets.

Significant changes in contract receivables and contract liabilities as of December 31,
2024 and 2023, are as follows:

Deferred MUOA revenues at beginning of year $ 80,000 § 91,250
Revenue recognized during the year 165,000 (11,250)
Additions for MUOA fees received (75.000) -

$ 170,000 $§  80.000

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING. LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

2024 2023

Note payable to related party $ 26,510 $ -

Note payable to the Small Business Administration

(SBA) for an Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL)

in 360 monthly payments of $1,030, with 3.75%

interest and secured by substantially all assets of the

Company. $214.774  $254.999
Total 241,284 254,999
Current portion 30.891 51.818
Long-term debt, net of current portion $210393 $ 203.181

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows at December 31, 2024:

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2025 $ 30,891

2026 4,548

2027 4,721

2028 4,902

2029 5,089
Thereafter 191.133

$ 241,284

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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NOTE 5

NOTE 6

MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING. LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has an unsecured line of credit agreement with PNC Bank. The line
provides for maximum borrowings of $35,000, and carries a variable rate of interest. At
December 31, 2024 and 2023, outstanding borrowings were charged interest at 14.19%
and 12.19%, respectively. The balance outstanding on the line with PNC Bank at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $34,473 and $31,822, respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to/from related party

During the years ended December 31, 2024, and 2023, certain expenses of the
Company were paid for by entities that are owned by a partner of Mason’s Lobster
Franchising, LLC. Related entities also contributed funds to the company during the
years. The amounts due from (to) the related parties as of December 31, 2024, and 2023
were $11,376 and $(27,039), respectively.

In addition, at December 31, 2024, the Company had five franchise agreements in
which a member of Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC, was also a member in the
franchisee. At December 31, 2023, the Company had five such franchise agreements.
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, royalties and brand fund
contributions from these franchisees amounted to $27,949 and $35,269, respectively.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING. LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 7 MEMBERS’ DEFICIT

Organization
The Company is governed by its Operating Agreement (the “Operating Agreement”).

All current and future members of the Company are subject to the operating agreement.
As of December 31, 2024, 1,000 units in the Company have been authorized and 980
are issued. Each member is entitled to one vote for each unit held.

Management
As stipulated in the Operating Agreement, the Company is a member managed limited

liability company.

Transfer Restrictions

The holders of membership units are subject to transfer restrictions as determined by
the Operating Agreement. All or part of a membership interest may be transferred only
with the prior written approval of a majority of the members.

Right of First Refusal

If any member desires to transfer all or a portion of its membership interest to any other
person, the transferring member may make such transfer only after first offering its
membership interest to the Company and other members as provided for in the

Operating Agreement.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 8§ LEASE COMMITMENT

The Company entered into an agreement April 2024 to rent office space for a one-year
period with two, one-year options to renew. This agreement provides for fixed
monthly payments of $1,600. Based on the terms of the lease, the Company has
determined the lease to be an operating lease under FASB ASU 842. For the years
ended December 31, 2024, and 2023, rent expense associated with this lease was
$26,986 and $11,365, respectively. The lease was discounted using a risk-free interest
rate of 5.27%.

Future payments due under this lease are as follows at December 31, 2024:

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2025 $ 19,200
2026 19,200
Less effects after discounting (823)
$ 24777

NOTE 9 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated all subsequent events through March 28, 2025, the date
which the financial statements were available to be issued. During this period, no
subsequent events occurred, other than what is currently disclosed, which require
disclosure or accrual in the financial statements.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
-16-
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Acknowledgment Of Independent Certified Public Accountants

ClarkHirth agrees to the inclusion in the Franchise Disclosure Document issued by
Mason's Lobster Franchising, LLC on April 24, 2024, as it may be amended, of its report
dated February 9, 2024 relating to the financial statements of Mason’s Lobster Franchising,
LLC as of December 31, 2023.

Colpé Hinth, P

CLARKHIRTH
Farmington, CT
April 24, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC
Annapolis, Maryland

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC,
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements
of income and changes in members’ deficit and cash flows for the years then ended, and the

related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC and to meet other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mason’s
Lobster Franchising, LLC’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date
that the financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
Jjudgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e [Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC’s ability
to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

ColonéHinth, P,

Farmington, Connecticut
February 9, 2024



MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents § 13,358 § 222513
Accounts receivable 21,637 19,188
Total current assets 34,995 241,701
Other assets:
ROU asset for operating lease, net 2,923 14,543
Due from related parties, net - 29,362
Total other assets 2,923 43,905
Total assets $ 37918 $ 285,606
Liabilities and Members' Deficit
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 45928 § 67,764
Deferred revenue, current portion 132,500 167,500
Operating lease liability, current portion 2,923 11,620
Long-term debt, current portion 51,818 -
Line of credit 31,822 28,407
Total current liabilities 264,991 275,291
Other liabilities:
Deferred revenue, net of current portion 175,000 76,250
Operating lease liability, net of current portion - 2,923
Long-term debt 203,181 207,500
Due to related parties, net 27,039 -
Total long-term liabilities 405,220 286,673
Total liabilities 670,211 561,964
Members' deficit (632,293) (276,358)
Total liabilities and members' deficit $ 37918 $ 285,606

See Independent Auditors’ Report
-3-



MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ DEFICIT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
Franchise revenues:
Franchise fees $ 146,250 $ 116,500
Royalties 936,617 711,543
Advertising fees 110,019 84,339
Rebates and other 190,400 229017
Total revenues, net 1,383,286 1,141,399
Operating expenses:
Advertising 26,668 76,208
Brand development 233,881 166,876
Commission fees 92,308 125,036
Compensation and benefits 191,870 172,695
Consulting fees 96,233 93,022
Guaranteed payments 10,910 24,699
Merchant fees 13,479 1,480
Office expense 47,052 12,804
Professional fees 60,567 36,401
Rent 11,365 11,283
Royalty expense 153,808 136,717
Taxes 21,074 24,200
Travel 53,008 56,310
Total operating expenses 1,012,223 937,731
Other income (expenses):
Interest expense (29,383) (14,011)
Total other income (expenses) (29,383) (14,011)
Net income 341,680 189,657
Members' deficit, beginning of year (276,358) (147,008)
Members' capital contributions 101,100 217,647
Members' distributions (798,715) (536,654)
Members' deficit, end of year $ (632,293) $ (276,358)

See Independent Auditors’ Report
-4-



MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 341,680 189,657
Amortization of ROU asset for operating lease (11,620) (14,543)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable (2,449) (7,149)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (21,836) 43,660
Deferred revenue 63,750 172,500
Operating lease liability 11,620 14,543
Net cash provided by operating activities 381,145 398,668
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt 151,181 207,500
Principal payments on long-term debt (103,682) -
Proceeds from line of credit 8,000 30,500
Principal payments on line of credit (4,585) (29,380)
Increase (decrease) in due to/from related party 56,401 (71,220)
Members' capital contributions 101,100 217,647
Members' distributions (798,715) (536,654)
Net cash used by financing activities (590,300) (181,607)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (209,155) 217,061
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 222,513 5,452
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 13,358 222,513
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 14,102 6,511

See Independent Auditors’ Report
-5-



NOTE 1

NOTE 2

MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

ORGANIZATION

Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC (the “Company”) is a Delaware limited liability
company, which was organized on December 14, 2015. The Company is organized to
acquire, construct, own, operate, manage, finance, refinance, lease, develop and/or
franchise restaurants in the United States of America.

A summary of franchise activity is as follows:

2023 2022
Units operating at January 1 22 15
Units opened 6 7
Units closed = =
Units operating at December 31 28 22

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting standards set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”). The
FASB sets generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America
(“GAAP”) that the Company follows to ensure its financial conditions, results of
operations, and cash flows are consistently reported. References to GAAP issued by the
FASB in these footnotes are to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“FASB

ASC”).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

The Company’s obligation for employees’ rights to receive compensation for future
absences such as vacation and sick pay has not been accrued as they could not be
reasonably estimated.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
-6-



MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LL.C
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

Income Taxes : :

The Company, with the consent of its members, elected to be taxed as a partnership
under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. Under these provisions, the
Company generally does not pay federal or state income taxes on its taxable income.
Instead, the members of the Company are taxed on their proportionate share of the
Company’s taxable income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid
investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

The Company considers the following factors when determining expected credit losses
for receivables: franchisee creditworthiness, past transaction history with the
franchisee, and current economic industry trends. Management believes that the
composition of trade receivables at year-end is consistent with historical conditions as
credit terms and practices and the customer base has not changed significantly. In the
latest long-term economic projections from December 2023, the Federal Reserve
forecast U.S. GDP growth slowing to 1.4% in 2024 and the U.S. unemployment rate
rising to 4.1%. The Fed also projects core PCE inflation will decline to 2.4% in 2024,
and it anticipates an average fed funds interest rate of 4.6% for the year. Despite this
information, the Company believes all of its accounts receivable at December 31, 2023
and 2022, are fully collectible, and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses have
been recorded.

Advertising
Advertising costs are charged to operators when incurred. Advertising expense was

$26,668 and $76,208 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
7-



MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

Revenue Recognition v
Effective January 1, 2019, the Company adopted the provision and expanded
requirements described in Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09.

The following policies apply to the Company’s major categories of revenue
transactions. Revenues are recognized when control of the promised goods or services
are transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be
entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. These revenues are recognized net
of discounts, waivers, and refunds.

The Company determines revenue recognition through the five-step model prescribed
by Topic 606 as follows:

o Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;

o Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

e Determination of the transaction price;

e Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the
contract;

e Recognition of revenue when, or as, performance obligations are satisfied.

Franchise fees and royalties

Contract consideration from franchisees primarily consist of initial or renewal franchise
fees, sales-based royalties, sales-based advertising fund fees and transfer fees payable
by a franchisee for the transfer of their franchise unit to another franchisee. The
Company also enters into multi-unit operator agreements ("MUOAs”) which grant a
franchisee the right to develop two or more franchise units. The Company collects an
upfront area development fee for the grant of such rights. The initial franchise fees and
upfront area development fees are nonrefundable and collected when the underlying
franchise agreement or MUOA is signed by the franchisee. Sales based royalties and
advertising fund fees are payable weekly. Renewal and transfer fees are payable when
an existing franchisee renews the franchise agreement for an additional term or when a
transfer to a third party occurs, respectively.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

Revenue Recognition— (Continued)

Franchise fees and royalties- (Continued)

The Company's primary performance obligation under the franchise agreement mainly
includes granting certain rights to access the Company's intellectual property and a
variety of activities relating to opening a franchise unit, including site selection,
training and other such activities commonly referred to collectively as "pre-opening
activities." The Company has elected to use the practical expedient for pre-opening
activities and considers the following as a single performance obligation: assistance in
selection of site; assistance in obtaining facilities and preparing facilities for their
intended use; training of franchisee’s personnel; preparation and distribution of
manuals; bookkeeping, information technology, and advisory services; and inspection,
testing and other quality control programs.

All other pre-opening activities have been determined to be highly interrelated and
interdependent to access the Company's intellectual property and therefore are
accounted for as a single performance obligation, which is satisfied by granting certain
rights to access the Company’s intellectual property over the term of each franchise
agreement.

The Company estimates the standalone selling price of training services that are not
brand specific using an adjusted market assessment approach. The Company first
allocates the initial franchise fees and the fixed consideration, under the franchise
agreement to the stand-alone selling price of the training services that are not brand
specific and the residual, if any, to the right to access the Company's intellectual
property. Consideration allocated to training services that are not brand specific are
recognized ratably as the training services are rendered.

Initial and renewal franchise fees allocated to the right to access the Company's
intellectual property are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of
the respective franchise agreement. MUOASs generally consist of an obligation to grant
the right to open two or more units. These development rights are not distinct from
franchise agreements; therefore, upfront fees paid by franchisees for development rights
are deferred and apportioned to each franchise agreement signed by the franchisee. The
pro-rata amount apportioned to each franchise agreement is recognized as revenue in
the same manner as the initial and renewal franchise fees. Initial and renewal franchise
fees related to the MUOAS are recorded as contract receivable and contract liabilities at
their contract transaction price.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

Revenue Recognition— (Continued)

Franchise fees and royalties- (Continued)

Royalties are earned based on a percentage of franchisee's gross revenues. Franchise
royalties represent sales-based royalties that are related entirely to the use of the
Company's intellectual property and are recognized as franchisee sales occur and the
royalty is deemed collectible.

Advertising Fund

The Company maintains an advertising fund established to collect and administer funds
contributed for use in advertising and promotional programs for franchise units.
Advertising fund fees are collected from franchisees based on a percentage of
franchisee gross revenues. The Company has determined that it acts as a principal in the
collection and administration of the advertising fund and therefore recognizes the
revenues and expenses related to the advertising fund on a gross basis. The Company
has determined that the right to access its intellectual property and administration of the
advertising fund are highly interrelated and therefore are accounted for as a single
performance obligation. As a result, revenues from the advertising fund represent sales-
based royalties related to the right to access the Company's intellectual property, which
are recognized as franchisee sales occur. When advertising fund fees exceed the related
advertising fund expenses in a reporting period, advertising costs are accrued up to the
amount of advertising fund revenues recognized.

Rebates
Any rebate money received by the Company is recognized as each performance

obligation is satisfied.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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NOTE 2

MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)

Accounting Pronouncements Issued and Adopted

Effective January 1, 2023, the Company adopted ASU 2016-13, Financial
Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments, as amended, which modifies the measurement of expected credit losses
on certain financial instruments. The Company adopted this new guidance utilizing the
modified retrospective transition method. Topic 326 requires measurement and
recognition of expected versus incurred losses for financial assets held. Financial
assets held by the Company that are subject to ASU 2016-13 include trade accounts
receivable and due from related parties. The adoption of this ASU did not have a
material impact on the Company's financial statements but did change how the
allowance for credit losses is determined.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE3 REVENUE AND RELATED CONTRACT BALANCES

Disaggregated revenues v
The Company derives its revenues from franchisees located throughout the United
States. The economic risks of the Company's revenues are dependent on the strength of
the economy in the United States and its ability to collect on its contracts. The
Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geographic region
and timing of revenue recognition by type of revenues, as it believes this best depicts
how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected
by economic factors.

Revenues by geographic region in the were as follows:

2023 2022
Midatlantic United States $ 837,492 $ 701,411
Midwestern United States 39,443 34,272
Northeast United States 2,794 -
Southeast United States 364,365 155,391
Southwest United States 72,026 134,243
Western United States 67,924 116,082

$ 1384044 $ 1.141.399

Revenue by timing of recognition were as follows:

2023 2022

Point in time:

Franchise fees $ 146,250 $ 116,500

Royalties 936,617 711,543

Franchise advertising fees 110,019 84,339

Rebates and other 191.158 229,017

Total $ 1,384,044 $ 1,141,399
Over time:

Franchise fees $ - $ -

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE3 REVENUE AND RELATED CONTRACT BALANCES — (Continued)

Contract balances S .

Contract liabilities are comprised of unamortized initial and renewal franchise fees
received from franchisees, which are presented as 'Deferred revenues' on the
accompanying balance sheets. A summary of significant changes in deferred franchise
fees are as follows:

2023 2022
Deferred franchise revenues at beginning of year $ 243,750 § 71,250
Revenue recognized during the year (146,250) (25,000)
Additions for initial franchise fees received 210,000 197.500

$ 307,500 § 243,750

Deferred franchise fees consisted of the following:
2023 2022

Franchise fees for units not yet opened $ 227,500 $ 152,500
Additions for initial franchise fees received

$ 227,500 $§ 152,500

The initial and renewal franchise fees on MUOAs that remain uncollected as of
December 31, 2023, and 2022, are reflected as "Accounts receivable" in the
accompanying balance sheets and the related contract liabilities are included in
"Deferred revenues" in the accompanying balance sheets.

Significant changes in contract receivables and contract liabilities as of December 31,
2023 and 2022, are as follows:

Deferred MUOA revenues at beginning of year $ 91,250 $§ 36,250
Revenue recognized during the year (11,250) (25,000)
Additions for MUOA fees received - 80,000

$ 80.000 § _ 91.250

See Independent Auditors” Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

2023 2022

Note payable to the Small Business Administration

(SBA) for an Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL)

in 360 monthly payments of $1,030, with 3.75%

interest and secured by substantially all assets of the

Company. $215,281  $ 207,500

Note payable to LG Funding, LLC in 29 weekly

Payments of $2,835, with 26.60% interest and

secured by receivables. 39.718 -
Total 254,999 207,500
Current portion 51,818 -
Long-term debt, net of current portion $203.181 $ 207.500

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows at December 31, 2023:

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2024 $ 51,818

2025 4,097

2026 4,253

2027 4415

2028 4,583
Thereafter 185.833

$ 254999

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 5 LINE OF CREDIT

NOTE 6

The Company has an unsecured line of credit agreement with PNC Bank. The line
provides for maximum borrowings of $35,000, and carries a variable rate of interest. At
December 31, 2023 and 2022, outstanding borrowings were charged interest at 12.19%
and 9.94%, respectively. The balance outstanding on the line with PNC Bank at _
December 31, 2023 and 2022 was $31,822 and $28,407, respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to/from related party

During the years ended December 31, 2023, and 2022, certain expenses of the
Company were paid for by entities that are owned by a partner of Mason’s Lobster
Franchising, LLC. Related entities also contributed funds to the company during the
years. The amounts due from (to) the related parties as of December 31, 2023, and 2022
were $27,039 and $29,362, respectively.

In addition, at December 31, 2023, the Company had five franchise agreements in
which a member of Mason’s Lobster Franchising, LLC, was also a member in the
franchisee. At December 31, 2022, the Company had four such franchise agreements.
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, royalties and brand fund
contributions from these franchisees amounted to $35,269 and $20,285, respectively.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE7 MEMBERS’ DEFICIT

NOTE 8

. Organization

The Company is governed by its Operating Agreement (the “Operating Agreement”).
All current and future members of the Company are subject to the operating agreement.
As of December 31, 2023, 1,000 units in the Company have been authorized and 980
are issued. Each member is entitled to one vote for each unit held.

Management
As stipulated in the Operating Agreement, the Company is a member managed limited

liability company.

Transfer Restrictions

The holders of membership units are subject to transfer restrictions as determined by
the Operating Agreement. All or part of a membership interest may be transferred only
with the prior written approval of a majority of the members.

Right of First Refusal

If any member desires to transfer all or a portion of its membership interest to any other
person, the transferring member may make such transfer only after first offering its
membership interest to the Company and other members as provided for in the

Operating Agreement.

LEASE COMMITMENT

The Company entered into an agreement April 2017 to rent office space. This
agreement was extended through April 2024 and provides for fixed monthly payments
of $974. Based on the terms of the lease, the Company has determined the lease to be
an operating lease under FASB ASU 842. However, the effects of discounting were
determined to be immaterial. Therefore, the Company recognizes these lease payments
in the amount of the cash paid in the period in which the obligations for those
payments is incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2023, and 2022, rent expense
associated with this lease was $11,365 and $11,283, respectively.

Future payments due under this lease are as follows at December 31, 2023:

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2024 $ 2,923

See Independent Auditors’ Report
-16-



MASON’S LOBSTER FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE9 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated all subsequent events through February 9, 2024, the date
which the financial statements were available to be issued. During this period, no
subsequent events occurred, other than what is currently disclosed, which require
disclosure or accrual in the financial statements.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
-17-



@ FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
MAS[]N'S EXHIBIT E

Goots Pt FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls FDD May 21, 2025



sz FAMOUS Waﬁ"‘

MASON’S FAMOUS LOBSTER ROLLS®
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FRANCHISEE:

Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls FDD May 21, 2025



Mason’s Famous Lobster Rolls Franchise Agreement

Table of Contents

Article Page
L. DEFINITIONS ..ottt e ettt ettt e et e ettt e e e etae e etae e e eetbeeeeeasaeeeabeeeeetseeeenseeeeetteeeetseeesnrees 1
2. GRANT OF FRANCHISE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ese et et eaeeaeeaeensensensensensensesaeeseeseeneereens 11

2.A. GRANT OF FRANCHISE .....ooiiiiiiiticeeceeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt aaeentensentesaesseeneenseneene 11
2.B. TERM .. ettt e e ettt e e e e e s aaaeeee e e e aabaaeeee e e atbaaeeeeeantraaaeeeeaanraraaaeeeeaarraaaeeeanees 13
2.C. GUARANTEES, CONFIDENTIALITY AND RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS ......cooovviiieieennen. 13
2.D. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS ...t ettt e et e e tne e e e tvaeeeaneae e 14
2.E. MODIFICATION OF SYSTEM ..ottt eetae e e e e aaaee e e e e s eeaaraeeeeeeenes 14
2.F. CORPORATE ENTITY OWNERSHIP.........coooiiiiiieeeeeeeee et 14
3. RESTAURANT LOCATION, DEVELOPMENT, AND OPERATIONS .......cooooiiiiiieeeee e 14
3. A, RESTAURANT LOCATION .....oooiitiitiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt eve et eaeete e ens s sesaesneeneeneens 14
3.B. RESTAURANT DEVELOPMENT ...ttt ettt eeavee e etae e e etaaeeeaneee e 15
3.C. RESTAURANT OPENING .......ooiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt et e et e eeteeeeetvaeeesaveeeetneeesteeeeenneeeenns 16
3.D. RESTAURANT OPERATIONS . ... .ottt ettt eete e et e e et e e tveeeetaaeeenneeeenes 16
3.E. BUSINESS MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.......ooiiiiiiiiiie ettt eeans 17
3.F. DIGITAL MEDIA, S